
 

 

 

 

 

CITY OF LEEDS, ALABAMA 

PLANNING AND ZONING COMMISSION AGENDA 

1412 9th St - Annex 

July 13, 2023 @ 5:00 PM 

 

 
CALL TO ORDER: 

ROLL CALL: 

DETERMINATION OF QUORUM: 

APPROVAL OF MINUTES FROM PREVIOUS MEETING(S): 

1. Minutes of June 8, 2023 Meeting 

OLD BUSINESS: 

NEW BUSINESS: 

2. SA23-000007 - A request by Jerry Perry, Applicant, Ariette Luna, Owner, to resurvey certain 
parcels as Luna Resurvey on Parkway located at 7516 Parkway Dr, 35094, TPID: 25 00 20 1 
002 009.000, Jefferson County, Zoned B-2, General Business District Form Based Code 
Overlay. 

3. SA20-000010 - Street Acceptance - A request by Tower Homes to accept the streets at the 
Cottages on Weaver. 

4. SA20-000012 - Street Acceptance - A request to release the performance bond related to 
Grand River South Residential Phase 1, 995 Rex Lake Rd, Leeds ,AL 35094, TPID 
2400264000001000, Zoned PCD: Planned Community Development. 

5. SA23-000009 - A request by Gene Moore investment Inc., Owner, and Applicant, to subdivide 
a parcel of property located at 8570 Apple St, Leeds, AL 35094, TPID 2500223002004.000, 
Jefferson County, Zoned I-2, Heavy Industrial. 

PUBLIC ADDRESS: 

OTHER BUSINESS: 

CHAIRPERSON'S COMMUNICATION: 

ADJOURNMENT: 

 

In compliance with the Americans with Disabilities Act, those requiring accommodation for Council 
meetings should notify the City Clerk’s Office at least 24 hours prior to the meeting at 205-699-2585. 

1



File Attachments for Item:

1. Minutes of June 8, 2023 Meeting

2



3



4



5



File Attachments for Item:

2. SA23-000007 - A request by Jerry Perry, Applicant, Ariette Luna, Owner, to resurvey certain 

parcels as Luna Resurvey on Parkway located at 7516 Parkway Dr, 35094, TPID: 25 00 20 1 

002 009.000, Jefferson County, Zoned B-2, General Business District Form Based Code 

Overlay.

6



6/19/23, 5:49 PM Letter View

file:///Users/bradwatson/Downloads/Notice of Public Hearing - Subdivision (5).htm 1/1

NOTICE OF PUBLIC HEARING
City of Leeds, Alabama
Planning and Zoning Commission

Application for Subdivision
Resury five lots into two lots.

APPLICATION
An application for subdivision plat approval has been filed with the City of Leeds Planning and Zoning Commission for “Resury five lots into two lots.”. This proposed
subdivision consists of 2.
PLANNING AND ZONING COMMISSION
The Planning and Zoning Commission is vested with the responsibility and authority of determining conformity with the City of Leeds Subdivision Regulations

CASE #: SA23-000007
APPLICANT NAME: Jerry Peery
PROPERTY OWNER:
TAX PARCEL ID#S: 2500201002009000
CASE ADDRESS: 7516 PARKWAY DR 110; LEEDS, AL 35094
 

NOTICE IS HEREBY GIVEN that the Planning and Zoning Commission will hold a public hearing on the proposed preliminary plat. The hearing is scheduled on.
Date: 07/13/2023
Time: 5:00 p.m.
Place: Leeds Annex Meeting Room

1412 9th St
Leeds, AL 35094

Public Information: Any interested persons or their representative may appear at the meeting and comment on the application. Written comments may also be
mailed to the Commission.
For more information about the application and related issues or to schedule an appointment:

Contact Person: Brad Watson Phone: 205-699-0907
E-mail: development@leedsalabama.gov
  
Mailing Address:
City of Leeds
Planning and Zoning commission
1404 9th Street
Leeds, AL 35094

7



Vivian

Parkway

Miami

Eloise

SA23-000007

Source: Esri, DigitalGlobe, GeoEye, Earthstar Geographics, CNES/Airbus DS,
USDA, USGS, AeroGRID, IGN, and the GIS User Community

´
City of  Lee ds

Legend
StreetCenterline

S23-000007
7516 PARKWAY DR

AERIAL

±

8



9



Vivian

Parkway

Miami

Eloise

SA23-000007

AE

X

X

AE

0.2 PCT ANNUAL CHANCE FLOOD HAZARD

Source: Esri, DigitalGlobe, GeoEye, Earthstar Geographics, CNES/Airbus DS,
USDA, USGS, AeroGRID, IGN, and the GIS User Community

´
City of  Lee ds

Legend
StreetCenterline

S23-000007
7516 PARKWAY DR

FLOOD

±

10



File Attachments for Item:

3. SA20-000010 - Street Acceptance - A request by Tower Homes to accept the streets at the 

Cottages on Weaver.

11



Application for Street Acceptance (May 2018) Page 1 of 9  

 

 

APPLICATION FOR STREET ACCEPTANCE 

This application may be completed by any property owner seeking to dedicate one or more privately owned 

streets to the City of Leeds for public ownership and maintenance. For the purpose of this application, a 

“street” shall include all public infrastructure located within a public right-of-way, including, but not limited 

to: travel lanes, curb and gutter, drainage and sidewalks, as well as planting strips, planted medians and street 

trees, which may be subject to a maintenance agreement between the City and the applicant. 

 
Only streets which have been platted pursuant to the City’s Subdivision and Zoning Ordinances, and 

designed, installed and tested in accordance with the City of Leeds’s design, installation and testing 

requirements (or any alternative requirements approved by the City Engineer), shall be eligible for 

dedication and acceptance. 

 
All applications for street acceptance must include the following items: 

 

Signed and completed application for street acceptance; 
 

Property plat or map, minimum 11” by 17”, showing all street locations and right-of-way widths 

(Note: Only streets which are dedicated as public rights-of-way may be offered for acceptance); 
 

One (1) full set of as-built drawings for all streets contained within the application; 
 

A one-time street inspection fee of $2.00 per linear foot (unless exempt); 
 

Copies of all testing and inspection reports; 
 

Copies of all easements, encroachment permits and maintenance agreements within the 

proposed public rights-of-way; 
 

Engineer’s cost estimate or paid invoice(s) showing the total construction value (including labor) 

of all infrastructure located within any rights-of-way proposed for public acceptance; and 
 

A surety bond or letter of credit equal to 25% of the engineer’s cost estimate or total construction 

value, to be held for the duration of the Maintenance Liability Period, plus ninety (90) days 

(unless exempt). 

 
The enclosed application form and all supporting materials may City of Leeds 

be sent to the following address: Attn: Planning Department 

1400 9th St 

Leeds, AL 35094 

 

Confirmed exempt,
see Exhibit A for
existing Letter of
Credit surety
in-place with City of
Leeds in the
amount of $50,000.
-BR

Confirmed
exempt. -BR

Exhibit B - City of Leeds public right-of-way acceptance
letter attached dated March 22, 2022. -BR

The Cottages on Weaver Subdivision
12



Application for Street Acceptance (May 2018) Page 2 of 9  

 

 

APPLICATION FOR STREET ACCEPTANCE 
 

Property Owner Name  

Property Owner Address  

Primary Contact Name/Title  

Primary Contact Phone  

Primary Contact Email  

 

Subdivision -- If Applicable  

Phase(s) -- If Applicable  

The property owner identified above hereby applies to the Leeds City Council for acceptance of the 

following streets into the City of Leeds Street Maintenance System. All streets must be clearly 

identified by name, beginning and ending point, and street length, in the space provided below. Portions 

of streets must be clearly delineated by dimensions and/or landmarks. Please include a map or plat of 

all streets covered by this application. Attach additional sheets, if necessary. 

 

Street Name From To Length (LF) 

    

    

    

    

    

    

    

    

    

    

Grants Mill, LLC

2106 Devereux Circle, Birmingham, AL 35209

Bobby Riis, Land Development Manager

251-298-9162

bobby@tower-homes.com

The Cottages on Weaver

NA

Weaver Way

Ashley Drive

East side entry - by C-3 & C-4 Dead-end; Lot 24 810 LF

1010 LFWest side entry - by C-1 & C-2 Dead-end; Lot 24

13



14



15



Application for Street Acceptance (May 2018) Page 5 of 9  

 
 

INSPECTOR CERTIFICATION 
 
I certify that all streets contained within this application were inspected by me on  , 

20  , and were found to be free of any defects and/or discrepancies. I further certify that these streets 

are eligible for acceptance into the City of Leeds Street Maintenance System, pursuant to the City of 

Leeds’s Subdivision Ordinance and Street Acceptance Policy, unless otherwise noted below. 

 

Inspector Signature  Date  

Name (Printed)  Title  

 

 
 
 

Notes/Conditions: 

 

This section to be completed by the City Street & Drainage Inspector 

16



Application for Street Acceptance (May 2018) Page 6 of 9  

 
 

CITY ENGINEER ENDORSEMENT 
 

 

Comments 

 

 

Recommendations 

 

 

Signature  Date  

Name (Printed)  Title City Engineer 

 

PLANNING DEPARTMENT ENDORSEMENT 
 

 

Comments 

Subdivision plat recorded at Plat Book(s)/Page(s)   
 

 

Bond/LOC #  Expiration:     

Does property meet 75% build out requirement? Yes No 

 

Recommendations 

 

 

Signature  Date  

Name (Printed)  Title Planning Director 

 

PUBLIC WORKS DEPARTMENT ENDORSEMENT 
 

 

Comments 

 

 

Recommendations 

 

 

Signature  Date  

Name (Printed)  Title Public Works Director 

This section to be completed by Engineering, Planning & Public Works  

17



Application for Street Acceptance (May 2018) Page 7 of 9  

 
 

CERTIFICATION OF COUNCIL ACTION 
 
I certify that the Leeds City Council, during a duly called meeting on  , 20 , 

voted to ACCEPT / NOT ACCEPT into the City of Leeds Street Maintenance System, all the streets 

contained within this application, unless otherwise noted below. 

 
Pursuant to the City of Leeds Street Acceptance Policy, the Maintenance Liability Period shall commence 

on  , 20 , and shall expire on 

otherwise noted below. 

 , 20 , unless 

 
 

Signature  Date  

Name (Printed)  Title City Clerk 

 
 
 
 

Notes/Conditions: 

 

 

 

Statutory Reference 
 

Approval of plan or plat not acceptance of dedication of land. 

 
The approval of the land development plan or subdivision plat may not be deemed to automatically 

constitute or effect an acceptance by the municipality or the county or the public of the dedication 

of any street, easement, or other ground shown upon the plat. Public acceptance of the lands must 

be by action of the governing body customary to these transactions. 

 
Alabama Code Title 11. Counties and Municipal Corporations § 11-52-34 

This section to be completed by the City Clerk following City Council action 

18



Application for Street Acceptance (May 2018) Page 8 of 9  

 
 

APPLICATION FOR FINAL INSPECTION 
 
I/We hereby request that the City Engineer conduct a final inspection of all streets identified within this 

application. I certify that the Maintenance Liability Period has elapsed, or will elapse within the next thirty 

(30) days, and at least seventy-five percent (75%) of all lots within the area covered by this application have 

been built out and completed. 

 
Further, following the results of the City Engineer’s inspection, I/We agree to repair or replace any defects or 

discrepancies within sixty (60) days of the final inspection date. I/We understand that failure to make the 

required repairs within sixty (60) days will result in a drawdown of the applicant’s bond or letter of credit. 

 

Applicant Signature  Date  

Name (Printed)  Title  

 
 
 
 

Applicant Notes: 

 

This section to be completed by the Applicant upon completion of the Maintenance Liability Period 

19



Application for Street Acceptance (May 2018) Page 9 of 9  

 
 

FINAL INSPECTION REPORT 
 
I certify that a final inspection for all streets contained within this application was completed by me on 

 , 20  . Below is a summary of my findings: 
 
 

 
 
 

 
Inspection 

Results 

 

 Final Inspection Approved (No Repairs Required) 
 

 Final Inspection Not Approved (Repairs Required) 

Defects/Discrepancies (If Any): 

 
It is understood that the applicant will repair any defects or discrepancies, if any are noted above, within 

ninety (90) days from the date of this inspection report. Upon completion of these repairs, the applicant shall 

request a final re-inspection from the City Engineer. Failure to make the required repairs within ninety 

(90) days will result in a drawdown of the applicant’s bond or letter of credit. 

 

Signature  Date  

Name (Printed)  Title City Engineer 

 

FINAL RE-INSPECTION REPORT 
 
I certify that a final re-inspection for all streets contained within this application was completed by me on 

 , 20 . At such time, all streets were found to be free of any defects or 

discrepancies. The re-inspection is hereby approved, and the applicant is hereby released from any further 

maintenance liability for all streets contained within this application, unless otherwise noted below. 

 

Signature  Date  

Name (Printed)  Title City Engineer 

 

 
 

Notes/Conditions: 

 

 

This section to be completed by the City Engineer following final inspection / re-inspection 

20



21



22



39'-10 1/2"

40'-2 1/4"

23



Geotechnical Engineering Services
Construction Material

Civil Quality Control

Grants Mill, LLC
2106 Devereux Circle
Vestavia Hills, AL 35243

06/26/2020

Attention : Clint Johnson
Joseph Winters
Keith Carpenter

RE: Daily Field Report for 06/20/2020
Cottages on Weaver Avenue (CMT) Leeds, AL
Building & Earth Project No : BH190345

Ladies and Gentlemen:

On this date, representative(s) of Building & Earth were present to perform construction material
testing services at this project site. Our testing and observations for this date include the following:

FO-55 : Field Observations made on this date.
• Soil Fill Observation For Information Only

ST-36 : In place field density testing was performed for Fill for roadways & utility trench. The field
density testing was performed in general accordance with ASTMD6938, using values from the
laboratory proctors. A total of 19 in-place field density tests were performed on this date. The testing
results indicate that in-place compaction and moisture content at the location and depth tested meet
or exceed the specified requirements outlined in the project plans and specifications. For additional
details of our testing, please refer to the attached Field Density Test Report.

Closing

The testing and observations identified above have been reviewed by our project manager. If
you have questions regarding this information, please do not hesitate to contact us.

Respectfully Submitted,
Building & Earth Sciences, LLP

Enclosures : FO-55, ST-36

5545 Derby Drive
Birmingham, AL 35210
Phone 205-836-6300  Fax 205-836-9007
www.BuildingandEarth.com

Geovault, LLC.

Reviewed By

Page 1 of 4

24



06/20/2020

Field Observations Report

Project Name: Cottages on Weaver Avenue (CMT) Leeds,
AL Project Number: BH190345

Client Name: Grants Mill, LLC Placement#: FO-55

Contractor: Tortorigi Construction Technician: Abigail Tyler

Monitoring: Density Testing

1 : Soil Fill Observation

The grading contractor was observed placing engineered fill at the following locations today: 

6 lifts, approximately 6 inches in thickness, in the Driveway between Manhole 4 and 5, 6 and 7, and 7 and 8, at approximate elevation
 -1 to subgrade. 

Once placed, the fill was spread with a dozier. The fill material was not moisture conditioned prior to compaction. The fill was placed
 in approximately 8 inch loose lifts and compacted with a sheeps foot roller. A total of 6 lifts were placed on this date. Our technician
 conducted 20 Field density tests and the results are shown on the report of field density for this date. 

NOTE: All locations and thicknesses are estimates of our on-site representative. 

5545 Derby Drive
Birmingham, AL 35210
Phone 205-836-6300  Fax 205-836-9007
www.BuildingandEarth.com

Geovault, LLC.

Reviewed By

Page 2 of 4

25



ST-36

Test Date: 06/20/2020
Field Technician: Abigail Tyler

Tests requested by: Tortorigi Construction
Results provided to: Michael Tierce

Report of Field Density Testing

Project Name: Cottages on Weaver Avenue (CMT) Leeds,
AL Ambient Temperature: 70-90

Project Number: BH190345 Weather: Partly Cloudy
Project Location: Leeds, AL Wind Conditions: Breezy

Client: Grants Mill, LLC Results Provided To: Michael Tierce
Contractor: Tortorigi Construction Superintendant: Austin Payne

Notes: 1 Test locations estimated by Bldg & Earth Technician
2 Test elevations estimated by Bldg & Earth Technician
3 The fill was placed and compacted while our representative was on-site

Design & Specification Data
Moisture

RangeArea ID Area Description Depth (ft) Test Method % Compaction
Min Max

Roadways Fill for roadways & utility trench 0.0 - 50.0 ASTM D-698 98 % - 2.0 + 2.0

Laboratory Proctors

Proctor ID Description of Material USCS/AASHTO Maximum Dry
Density (pcf)

Optimum
Moisture

Content (%)
193451037C sandy clay 113.4 15.7%
193451037B sandy clay 111.5 16.5%
193451037A sandy clay 109.5 17.3%
193451768 sandy clay 105.6 17.1%
193451047 sandy clay 104.1 21.5%
193451037 sandy clay 107.7 18.0%

Density Test Data
IDs

Test #
Area Proctor

Test
Type Location

Probe
Depth

(in)

Elev.
(ft)

Dry
Density(pcf)

%
Moisture

%
Compaction Result

1 Roadways 193451037C ASTMD6938
Fill for roadways & utility trench :
Manhole 4
100’ SSW : 15’ E

6 -1’ to
Subgrade 112.2 15.5 99% PASS

2 Roadways 193451037B ASTMD6938
Fill for roadways & utility trench :
Manhole 4
200’ SSW : 15’ E

6 -1’ to
Subgrade 111.8 18.2 100% PASS

3 Roadways 193451037B ASTMD6938
Fill for roadways & utility trench :
Manhole 4
300’ SSW : 15’ E

6 -1’ to
Subgrade 109.4 18.4 98% PASS

4 Roadways 193451037C ASTMD6938
Fill for roadways & utility trench :
Manhole 4
100’ SSW : 15’ E

6 -0.5’ to
Subgrade 115.0 15.8 100+ PASS

5 Roadways 193451037B ASTMD6938
Fill for roadways & utility trench :
Manhole 4
200’ SSW : 15’ E

6 -0.5’ to
Subgrade 111.9 16.1 100% PASS

6 Roadways 193451037A ASTMD6938
Fill for roadways & utility trench :
Manhole 4
300’ SSW : 15’ E

6 -0.5’ to
Subgrade 109.6 16.5 100% PASS

7 Roadways 193451768 ASTMD6938
Fill for roadways & utility trench :
Manhole 5
200’ SSW : 15’ E

6 -0.5’ to
Subgrade 105.0 18.6 99% PASS

8 Roadways 193451768 ASTMD6938
Fill for roadways & utility trench :
Manhole 5
100’ SSW : 15’ E

6 -0.5’ to
Subgrade 105.1 17.1 100% PASS

5545 Derby Drive
Birmingham, AL 35210
Phone 205-836-6300  Fax 205-836-9007
www.BuildingandEarth.com

Geovault, LLC.

Reviewed By

Page 3 of 4

26



ST-36

Test Date: 06/20/2020
Field Technician: Abigail Tyler

Tests requested by: Tortorigi Construction
Results provided to: Michael Tierce

Density Test Data
IDs

Test #
Area Proctor

Test
Type Location

Probe
Depth

(in)

Elev.
(ft)

Dry
Density(pcf)

%
Moisture

%
Compaction Result

9 Roadways 193451768 ASTMD6938
Fill for roadways & utility trench :
Manhole 5
300’ SSW : 15’ E

6 -0.5’ to
Subgrade 105.2 17.0 100% PASS

10 Roadways 193451047 ASTMD6938
Fill for roadways & utility trench :
Manhole 8
100’ SSW : 15’ E

6 -0.5’ to
Subgrade 102.5 19.5 98% PASS

11 Roadways 193451047 ASTMD6938
Fill for roadways & utility trench :
Manhole 8
200’ SSW : 15’ E

6 -0.5’ to
Subgrade 102.1 19.9 98% PASS

12 Roadways 193451037C ASTMD6938
Fill for roadways & utility trench :
Manhole 8
300’ SSW : 15’ E

6 -0.5’ to
Subgrade 113.3 13.7 100% PASS

13 Roadways 193451037A ASTMD6938
Fill for roadways & utility trench :
Manhole 7
75’ SSW : 15’ E

6 -0.5’ to
Subgrade 110.8 18.5 100+ PASS

14 Roadways 193451037A ASTMD6938
Fill for roadways & utility trench :
Manhole 7
150’ SSW : 15’ E

6 -0.5’ to
Subgrade 109.9 18.8 100% PASS

15 Roadways 193451037A ASTMD6938
Fill for roadways & utility trench :
Manhole 7
225’ SSW : 15’ E

6 -0.5’ to
Subgrade 110.4 19.3 100+ PASS

16 Roadways 193451037 ASTMD6938
Fill for roadways & utility trench :
Manhole 7
300’ SSW : 15’ E

6 -0.5’ to
Subgrade 107.8 18.5 100% PASS

17 Roadways 193451047 ASTMD6938
Fill for roadways & utility trench :
Manhole 7
100’ SSW : 15’ E

6 To
Subgrade 102.8 20.1 99% PASS

18 Roadways 193451047 ASTMD6938
Fill for roadways & utility trench :
Manhole 7
200’ SSW : 15’ E

6 To
Subgrade 102.9 20.3 99% PASS

19 Roadways 193451047 ASTMD6938
Fill for roadways & utility trench :
Manhole 7
300’ SSW : 15’ E

6 To
Subgrade 102.9 23.0 99% PASS

Equipment Used: Troxler 3430 SN31785 Standard Counts: Density: 2016
Last Calibration: 00/00/0000 Moisture: 628

5545 Derby Drive
Birmingham, AL 35210
Phone 205-836-6300  Fax 205-836-9007
www.BuildingandEarth.com

Geovault, LLC.

Reviewed By

Page 4 of 4

27



Geotechnical Engineering Services
Construction Material

Civil Quality Control

Grants Mill, LLC
2106 Devereux Circle
Vestavia Hills, AL 35243

07/22/2020

Attention : Clint Johnson
Joseph Winters
Keith Carpenter

RE: Daily Field Report for 07/15/2020
Cottages on Weaver Avenue (CMT) Leeds, AL
Building & Earth Project No : BH190345

Ladies and Gentlemen:

On this date, representative(s) of Building & Earth were present to perform construction material
testing services at this project site. Our testing and observations for this date include the following:

FO-56 : Field Observations made on this date.
• Proofroll Observation For Information Only

Closing

The testing and observations identified above have been reviewed by our project manager. If
you have questions regarding this information, please do not hesitate to contact us.

Respectfully Submitted,
Building & Earth Sciences, LLP

Enclosures : FO-56

5545 Derby Drive
Birmingham, AL 35210
Phone 205-836-6300  Fax 205-836-9007
www.BuildingandEarth.com

Geovault, LLC.

Reviewed By

Page 1 of 3

28



07/15/2020

Field Observations Report

Project Name: Cottages on Weaver Avenue (CMT) Leeds,
AL Project Number: BH190345

Client Name: Grants Mill, LLC Placement#: FO-56

Contractor: Tortorigi Construction Technician: Danny Embry

Monitoring: Site Observation

1 : Proofroll Observation

As requested by representatives of Tortorigi Construction, a site visit was made on this day to the Cottages on Weaver Avenue located
 in Leeds, Alabama. The purpose of this site visit was to observe the exposed subgrade of the roadway located from Manhole #3
 to Manhole #12 prior to placement of basestone. To evaluate the exposed subgrade, a fully loaded triaxle dump truck was utilized.
 Significant deflection was observed and the area was not approved for basestone placement. It was recommended that the area be
 allowed additional drying time. See attached photograph.

5545 Derby Drive
Birmingham, AL 35210
Phone 205-836-6300  Fax 205-836-9007
www.BuildingandEarth.com

Geovault, LLC.

Reviewed By

Page 2 of 3

29



07/15/2020

Field Observations Report

Project Name: Cottages on Weaver Avenue (CMT) Leeds,
AL Project Number: BH190345

Client Name: Grants Mill, LLC Placement#: FO-56

Contractor: Tortorigi Construction Technician: Danny Embry

Monitoring: Site Observation

Photographs

Picture
ID roadway

42447

5545 Derby Drive
Birmingham, AL 35210
Phone 205-836-6300  Fax 205-836-9007
www.BuildingandEarth.com

Geovault, LLC.

Reviewed By

Page 3 of 3

30



Geotechnical Engineering Services
Construction Material

Civil Quality Control

Grants Mill, LLC
2106 Devereux Circle
Vestavia Hills, AL 35243

07/29/2020

Attention : Clint Johnson
Joseph Winters
Keith Carpenter

RE: Daily Field Report for 07/16/2020
Cottages on Weaver Avenue (CMT) Leeds, AL
Building & Earth Project No : BH190345

Ladies and Gentlemen:

On this date, representative(s) of Building & Earth were present to perform construction material
testing services at this project site. Our testing and observations for this date include the following:

FO-57 : Field Observations made on this date.
• Site Observation For Information Only

Closing

The testing and observations identified above have been reviewed by our project manager. If
you have questions regarding this information, please do not hesitate to contact us.

Respectfully Submitted,
Building & Earth Sciences, LLP

Enclosures : FO-57

5545 Derby Drive
Birmingham, AL 35210
Phone 205-836-6300  Fax 205-836-9007
www.BuildingandEarth.com

Geovault, LLC.

Reviewed By

Page 1 of 3

31



07/16/2020

Field Observations Report

Project Name: Cottages on Weaver Avenue (CMT) Leeds,
AL Project Number: BH190345

Client Name: Grants Mill, LLC Placement#: FO-57

Contractor: Grants Mill, LLC Technician: Danny Embry

Monitoring: Proofrolling Observations

1 : Site Observation

As requested by representatives of Tortorigi Construction, a site visit was made on this day to the Cottages on Weaver Avenue located
 in Leeds, Alabama. This was a follow up visit from the previous day. Representatives of Tortorigi Construction had peformed remedial
 work on the subgrade of the roadway located from Manhole #3 to Manhole #12 The roadway was proofrolled with a fully loaded triaxle
 dump truck. With the exception of an area located in the general vicinity of Manhole #3, the exposed subgrade appeared suitable to
 receive basestone placement. Additional remedial work will be required in the area of Manhole #3. A followup site visit was schedule
 for the following day to verify the completion of the remedial work. See attached photographs.

5545 Derby Drive
Birmingham, AL 35210
Phone 205-836-6300  Fax 205-836-9007
www.BuildingandEarth.com

Geovault, LLC.

Reviewed By

Page 2 of 3

32



07/16/2020

Field Observations Report

Project Name: Cottages on Weaver Avenue (CMT) Leeds,
AL Project Number: BH190345

Client Name: Grants Mill, LLC Placement#: FO-57

Contractor: Grants Mill, LLC Technician: Danny Embry

Monitoring: Proofrolling Observations

Photographs

Picture
ID Roadway 7-16-20

42575

Picture
ID Another photo

42576

5545 Derby Drive
Birmingham, AL 35210
Phone 205-836-6300  Fax 205-836-9007
www.BuildingandEarth.com

Geovault, LLC.

Reviewed By

Page 3 of 3

33



Geotechnical Engineering Services
Construction Material

Civil Quality Control

Grants Mill, LLC
2106 Devereux Circle
Vestavia Hills, AL 35243

07/29/2020

Attention : Clint Johnson
Joseph Winters
Keith Carpenter

RE: Daily Field Report for 07/17/2020
Cottages on Weaver Avenue (CMT) Leeds, AL
Building & Earth Project No : BH190345

Ladies and Gentlemen:

On this date, representative(s) of Building & Earth were present to perform construction material
testing services at this project site. Our testing and observations for this date include the following:

FO-58 : Field Observations made on this date.
• Proofroll Observation For Information Only

Closing

The testing and observations identified above have been reviewed by our project manager. If
you have questions regarding this information, please do not hesitate to contact us.

Respectfully Submitted,
Building & Earth Sciences, LLP

Enclosures : FO-58

5545 Derby Drive
Birmingham, AL 35210
Phone 205-836-6300  Fax 205-836-9007
www.BuildingandEarth.com

Geovault, LLC.

Reviewed By

Page 1 of 3

34



07/17/2020

Field Observations Report

Project Name: Cottages on Weaver Avenue (CMT) Leeds,
AL Project Number: BH190345

Client Name: Grants Mill, LLC Placement#: FO-58

Contractor: Tortorigi Construction Technician: Danny Embry

Monitoring: Proofrolling Observations

1 : Proofroll Observation

As requested by representatives of Tortorigi Construction, a site visit was made on this day to observe remedial work performed on
 the subgrade of the roadway located in the general vicinity of Manhole #3 at the Cottages on Weaver Avenue located in Leeds,
 Alabama. Upon my morning arrival onsite , representatives of Totorigi Construction had completed remedial work in the general area
 of the roadway subgrade located in the area of Manhole #3. The exposed subgrade at this time consisted of red brown silty clay. A
 Fully loaded triaxle dump truck was observed trafficking over the area with minimal deflection observed. The area was approved for
 basestone placement. See attached photographs.

5545 Derby Drive
Birmingham, AL 35210
Phone 205-836-6300  Fax 205-836-9007
www.BuildingandEarth.com

Geovault, LLC.

Reviewed By

Page 2 of 3

35



07/17/2020

Field Observations Report

Project Name: Cottages on Weaver Avenue (CMT) Leeds,
AL Project Number: BH190345

Client Name: Grants Mill, LLC Placement#: FO-58

Contractor: Tortorigi Construction Technician: Danny Embry

Monitoring: Proofrolling Observations

Photographs

Picture
ID Area of Manhole #3

42577

5545 Derby Drive
Birmingham, AL 35210
Phone 205-836-6300  Fax 205-836-9007
www.BuildingandEarth.com

Geovault, LLC.

Reviewed By

Page 3 of 3

36



Geotechnical Engineering Services
Construction Material

Civil Quality Control

Grants Mill, LLC
2106 Devereux Circle
Vestavia Hills, AL 35243

09/29/2020

Attention : Clint Johnson
Joseph Winters
Keith Carpenter

RE: Daily Field Report for 09/21/2020
Cottages on Weaver Avenue (CMT) Leeds, AL
Building & Earth Project No : BH190345

Ladies and Gentlemen:

On this date, representative(s) of Building & Earth were present to perform construction material
testing services at this project site. Our testing and observations for this date include the following:

FO-75 : Field Observations made on this date.
• Proofroll Observation For Information Only

Closing

The testing and observations identified above have been reviewed by our project manager. If
you have questions regarding this information, please do not hesitate to contact us.

Respectfully Submitted,
Building & Earth Sciences, LLP

Enclosures : FO-75

5545 Derby Drive
Birmingham, AL 35210
Phone 205-836-6300  Fax 205-836-9007
www.BuildingandEarth.com

Geovault, LLC.

Reviewed By

Page 1 of 3

37



09/21/2020

Field Observations Report

Project Name: Cottages on Weaver Avenue (CMT) Leeds,
AL Project Number: BH190345

Client Name: Grants Mill, LLC Placement#: FO-75

Contractor: Tortorigi Construction Technician: Danny Embry

Monitoring: Proofrolling Observations

1 : Proofroll Observation

As requested by Johnny Drummonds with Tortorigi Construction, a site visit was made on this day to the Cottages on Weaver Avenue
 located in Leeds, Alabama. The purpose of this site visit was to observe the exposed subgrade of the roadway located east of Lots
 24 through 39 in Phase II of the Cottages on Weaver Avenue prior to the placement of basestone.

Upon my arrival onsite, I met with Johnny Drummonds. A fully loaded triaxle dump truck was utilized to make several passes over the
 exposed subgrade. Minimal deflection was observed and the roadway was approved for basestone placement. 

See attached photograph.

5545 Derby Drive
Birmingham, AL 35210
Phone 205-836-6300  Fax 205-836-9007
www.BuildingandEarth.com

Geovault, LLC.

Reviewed By

Page 2 of 3

38



09/21/2020

Field Observations Report

Project Name: Cottages on Weaver Avenue (CMT) Leeds,
AL Project Number: BH190345

Client Name: Grants Mill, LLC Placement#: FO-75

Contractor: Tortorigi Construction Technician: Danny Embry

Monitoring: Proofrolling Observations

Photographs

Picture
ID Roadway east of Lots 24 through 39 Phase II

46606

5545 Derby Drive
Birmingham, AL 35210
Phone 205-836-6300  Fax 205-836-9007
www.BuildingandEarth.com

Geovault, LLC.

Reviewed By

Page 3 of 3

39



Geotechnical Engineering Services
Construction Material

Civil Quality Control

Grants Mill, LLC
2106 Devereux Circle
Vestavia Hills, AL 35243

10/07/2020

Attention : Clint Johnson
Joseph Winters
Keith Carpenter

RE: Daily Field Report for 10/02/2020
Cottages on Weaver Avenue (CMT) Leeds, AL
Building & Earth Project No : BH190345

Ladies and Gentlemen:

On this date, representative(s) of Building & Earth were present to perform construction material
testing services at this project site. Our testing and observations for this date include the following:

FO-76 : Field Observations made on this date.
• Density Testing For Information Only
• Proofroll observation For Information Only

Closing

The testing and observations identified above have been reviewed by our project manager. If
you have questions regarding this information, please do not hesitate to contact us.

Respectfully Submitted,
Building & Earth Sciences, LLP

Enclosures : FO-76

5545 Derby Drive
Birmingham, AL 35210
Phone 205-836-6300  Fax 205-836-9007
www.BuildingandEarth.com

Geovault, LLC.

Reviewed By

Page 1 of 7

40



10/02/2020

Field Observations Report

Project Name: Cottages on Weaver Avenue (CMT) Leeds,
AL Project Number: BH190345

Client Name: Grants Mill, LLC Placement#: FO-76

Contractor: Tortorigi Construction Technician: Jeromy Huang

Monitoring: Density Testing

1 : Density Testing

The grading contractor placed basestone at the following locations today: Roadway

1 lift, approximately 6 inches in thickness, in the roadway from the north entrance to the south end of the road for Phase II, approximate
 elevation: -0.0'

The placed basestone was imported to the onsite. Once placed, the basestone was spread with a dozer. The fill basestone was not
 moisture conditioned prior to compaction. The basestone was placed in approximately 6 inch loose lifts and compacted with a smooth
 drum roller. A total of 1 lift was placed on this date. The lift was placed prior to the arrival of our technician. Our technician conducted
 Field density tests.

NOTE: All locations and thicknesses are estimates of our on-site representative. 

2 : Proofroll observation

As requested by Keith Carpenter with Tortorigi Construction, a site visit was made on this day to the Cottages on Weaver Avenue
 located in Leeds, Alabama. The purpose of this site visit was to observe the exposed dense grade base of the roadway located
 between the entrance and the south end in Phase II of the Cottages on Weaver Avenue.

Upon arrival onsite, I met with Keith Carpenter and we observed the proof roll. A fully loaded triaxle dump truck was utilized to make
 several passes over the dense grade. Some deflection was observed in sporadic areas and primarily along the curb of the roadway.
 It was decided to allow the basestone additional drying time and perform another proofroll prior to placement of asphalt.

See attached photographs.

5545 Derby Drive
Birmingham, AL 35210
Phone 205-836-6300  Fax 205-836-9007
www.BuildingandEarth.com

Geovault, LLC.

Reviewed By

Page 2 of 7

41



10/02/2020

Field Observations Report

Project Name: Cottages on Weaver Avenue (CMT) Leeds,
AL Project Number: BH190345

Client Name: Grants Mill, LLC Placement#: FO-76

Contractor: Tortorigi Construction Technician: Jeromy Huang

Monitoring: Density Testing

Photographs

Picture
ID Between 2 and 3

47075

Picture
ID Between MH2 and MH3

47076

5545 Derby Drive
Birmingham, AL 35210
Phone 205-836-6300  Fax 205-836-9007
www.BuildingandEarth.com

Geovault, LLC.

Reviewed By

Page 3 of 7

42



10/02/2020

Field Observations Report

Project Name: Cottages on Weaver Avenue (CMT) Leeds,
AL Project Number: BH190345

Client Name: Grants Mill, LLC Placement#: FO-76

Contractor: Tortorigi Construction Technician: Jeromy Huang

Monitoring: Density Testing

Picture
ID South of MH6

47077

Picture
ID South of MH6

47078

5545 Derby Drive
Birmingham, AL 35210
Phone 205-836-6300  Fax 205-836-9007
www.BuildingandEarth.com

Geovault, LLC.

Reviewed By

Page 4 of 7

43



10/02/2020

Field Observations Report

Project Name: Cottages on Weaver Avenue (CMT) Leeds,
AL Project Number: BH190345

Client Name: Grants Mill, LLC Placement#: FO-76

Contractor: Tortorigi Construction Technician: Jeromy Huang

Monitoring: Density Testing

Picture
ID Front entrance to be paved

47079

Picture
ID North of MH4

47080

5545 Derby Drive
Birmingham, AL 35210
Phone 205-836-6300  Fax 205-836-9007
www.BuildingandEarth.com

Geovault, LLC.

Reviewed By

Page 5 of 7

44



10/02/2020

Field Observations Report

Project Name: Cottages on Weaver Avenue (CMT) Leeds,
AL Project Number: BH190345

Client Name: Grants Mill, LLC Placement#: FO-76

Contractor: Tortorigi Construction Technician: Jeromy Huang

Monitoring: Density Testing

Picture
ID North of 4

47081

Picture
ID South of MH4

47082

5545 Derby Drive
Birmingham, AL 35210
Phone 205-836-6300  Fax 205-836-9007
www.BuildingandEarth.com

Geovault, LLC.

Reviewed By

Page 6 of 7

45



10/02/2020

Field Observations Report

Project Name: Cottages on Weaver Avenue (CMT) Leeds,
AL Project Number: BH190345

Client Name: Grants Mill, LLC Placement#: FO-76

Contractor: Tortorigi Construction Technician: Jeromy Huang

Monitoring: Density Testing

Picture
ID South of MH4

47083

5545 Derby Drive
Birmingham, AL 35210
Phone 205-836-6300  Fax 205-836-9007
www.BuildingandEarth.com

Geovault, LLC.

Reviewed By

Page 7 of 7

46



Geotechnical Engineering Services
Construction Material

Civil Quality Control

Grants Mill, LLC
2106 Devereux Circle
Vestavia Hills, AL 35243

10/14/2020

Attention : Clint Johnson
Joseph Winters
Keith Carpenter

RE: Daily Field Report for 10/02/2020
Cottages on Weaver Avenue (CMT) Leeds, AL
Building & Earth Project No : BH190345

Ladies and Gentlemen:

On this date, representative(s) of Building & Earth were present to perform construction material
testing services at this project site. Our testing and observations for this date include the following:

ST-45 : In place field density testing was performed for Fill for roadways & utility trench. The field
density testing was performed in general accordance with ASTMD6938, using values from the
laboratory proctors. A total of 9 in-place field density tests were performed on this date. The testing
results indicate that in-place compaction and moisture content at the location and depth tested meet
or exceed the specified requirements outlined in the project plans and specifications. For additional
details of our testing, please refer to the attached Field Density Test Report.

Closing

The testing and observations identified above have been reviewed by our project manager. If
you have questions regarding this information, please do not hesitate to contact us.

Respectfully Submitted,
Building & Earth Sciences, LLP

Enclosures : ST-45

5545 Derby Drive
Birmingham, AL 35210
Phone 205-836-6300  Fax 205-836-9007
www.BuildingandEarth.com

Geovault, LLC.

Reviewed By

Page 1 of 4

47



ST-45

Test Date: 10/02/2020
Field Technician: Jeromy Huang

Tests requested by: Johnny Drummond
Results provided to: Keith Carpenter

Report of Field Density Testing

Project Name: Cottages on Weaver Avenue (CMT) Leeds,
AL Ambient Temperature: 55-85

Project Number: BH190345 Weather: Clear
Project Location: Leeds, AL Wind Conditions: Calm

Client: Grants Mill, LLC Results Provided To: Keith Carpenter
Contractor: Tortorigi Construction Superintendant: Johnny Drummond

Notes: 1 Test locations estimated by Bldg & Earth Technician
2 Test elevations estimated by Bldg & Earth Technician
3 The fill was placed and compacted while our representative was on-site

Design & Specification Data
Moisture

RangeArea ID Area Description Depth (ft) Test Method % Compaction
Min Max

Roadways Fill for roadways & utility trench 0.0 - 50.0 ASTM D-698 98 % - 3.0 + 3.0

Laboratory Proctors

Proctor ID Description of Material USCS/AASHTO Maximum Dry
Density (pcf)

Optimum
Moisture

Content (%)
193451428C dgb 140.4 8.1%
193451428A dgb 138.2 8.8%
193451428B dgb 139.3 8.4%

Density Test Data
IDs

Test #
Area Proctor

Test
Type Location

Probe
Depth

(in)

Elev.
(ft)

Dry
Density(pcf)

%
Moisture

%
Compaction Result

1 Roadways 193451428C ASTMD6938
Fill for roadways & utility trench :
#1 (picture attached)
- : -

-0.0' 139.9 7.6 100% PASS

2 Roadways 193451428A ASTMD6938
Fill for roadways & utility trench :
#2 (picture attached)
- : -

-0.0' 138.1 6.8 100% PASS

3 Roadways 193451428C ASTMD6938
Fill for roadways & utility trench :
#3 (picture attached)
- : -

-0.0' 140.1 5.6 100% PASS

4 Roadways 193451428C ASTMD6938
Fill for roadways & utility trench :
#4 (picture attached)
- : -

-0.0' 140.3 7.6 100% PASS

5 Roadways 193451428B ASTMD6938
Fill for roadways & utility trench :
#5 (picture attached)
- : -

-0.0' 138.8 6.6 100% PASS

6 Roadways 193451428C ASTMD6938
Fill for roadways & utility trench :
#6 (picture attached)
- : -

-0.0' 140.8 5.9 100% PASS

7 Roadways 193451428A ASTMD6938
Fill for roadways & utility trench :
#7 (picture attached)
- : -

-0.0' 138.5 6.4 100% PASS

8 Roadways 193451428C ASTMD6938
Fill for roadways & utility trench :
#8 (picture attached)
- : -

-0.0' 140.9 5.7 100% PASS

9 Roadways 193451428B ASTMD6938
Fill for roadways & utility trench :
#9 (picture attached)
- : -

-0.0' 139.5 7.1 100% PASS

5545 Derby Drive
Birmingham, AL 35210
Phone 205-836-6300  Fax 205-836-9007
www.BuildingandEarth.com

Geovault, LLC.

Reviewed By

Page 2 of 4

48



ST-45

Test Date: 10/02/2020
Field Technician: Jeromy Huang

Tests requested by: Johnny Drummond
Results provided to: Keith Carpenter

Equipment Used: Instrotek 3500 SN504 Standard Counts: Density: 2688
Last Calibration: 00/00/0000 Moisture: 911

5545 Derby Drive
Birmingham, AL 35210
Phone 205-836-6300  Fax 205-836-9007
www.BuildingandEarth.com

Geovault, LLC.

Reviewed By

Page 3 of 4

49



ST-45

Test Date: 10/02/2020
Field Technician: Jeromy Huang

Tests requested by: Johnny Drummond
Results provided to: Keith Carpenter

Photographs

Picture
ID Tested area

47569

5545 Derby Drive
Birmingham, AL 35210
Phone 205-836-6300  Fax 205-836-9007
www.BuildingandEarth.com

Geovault, LLC.

Reviewed By

Page 4 of 4

50



Geotechnical Engineering Services
Construction Material

Civil Quality Control

Grants Mill, LLC
2106 Devereux Circle
Vestavia Hills, AL 35243

10/14/2020

Attention : Clint Johnson
Joseph Winters
Keith Carpenter

RE: Daily Field Report for 10/06/2020
Cottages on Weaver Avenue (CMT) Leeds, AL
Building & Earth Project No : BH190345

Ladies and Gentlemen:

On this date, representative(s) of Building & Earth were present to perform construction material
testing services at this project site. Our testing and observations for this date include the following:

FO-77 : Field Observations made on this date.
• Proofroll For Information Only

Closing

The testing and observations identified above have been reviewed by our project manager. If
you have questions regarding this information, please do not hesitate to contact us.

Respectfully Submitted,
Building & Earth Sciences, LLP

Enclosures : FO-77

5545 Derby Drive
Birmingham, AL 35210
Phone 205-836-6300  Fax 205-836-9007
www.BuildingandEarth.com

Geovault, LLC.

Reviewed By

Page 1 of 3

51



10/06/2020

Field Observations Report

Project Name: Cottages on Weaver Avenue (CMT) Leeds,
AL Project Number: BH190345

Client Name: Grants Mill, LLC Placement#: FO-77

Contractor: Tortorigi Construction Technician: Stephen Poteracki

Monitoring: Proofroll Observations

1 : Proofroll

As requested by Johnny Drummonds with Tortorigi Construction, a site visit was made on this day to the Cottages on Weaver Avenue
 located in Leeds, Alabama. The purpose of this site visit was to observe the exposed subgrade of the roadway from Lot 23 to Lot 40. 

To evaluate the exposed subgrade a fully loaded triaxle dump truck was utilized to perform a proofroll. 

The exposed subgrade was pumping approximately 3 to 4 inches in the areas alongside the curb and isolated areas from Lot 23
 to Lot 40. A representative of Tortorigi Construction was informed of the proofrolling test results. Areas exhibiting movement were
 marked in the field for remedial work to be performed. Representatives of Tortorigi Construction were informed of the test results.
 Representatives of Tortorigi Construction elected to excavate ALL spots exhibiting movement approximatley 3 to 4 inches and backfill
 these areas with additional asphalt.

5545 Derby Drive
Birmingham, AL 35210
Phone 205-836-6300  Fax 205-836-9007
www.BuildingandEarth.com

Geovault, LLC.

Reviewed By

Page 2 of 3

52



10/06/2020

Field Observations Report

Project Name: Cottages on Weaver Avenue (CMT) Leeds,
AL Project Number: BH190345

Client Name: Grants Mill, LLC Placement#: FO-77

Contractor: Tortorigi Construction Technician: Stephen Poteracki

Monitoring: Proofroll Observations

Photographs

Picture
ID Looking North

47285

5545 Derby Drive
Birmingham, AL 35210
Phone 205-836-6300  Fax 205-836-9007
www.BuildingandEarth.com

Geovault, LLC.

Reviewed By

Page 3 of 3

53



Geotechnical Engineering Services
Construction Material

Civil Quality Control

Grants Mill, LLC
2106 Devereux Circle
Vestavia Hills, AL 35243

11/04/2020

Attention : Clint Johnson
Joseph Winters
Keith Carpenter

RE: Daily Field Report for 10/07/2020
Cottages on Weaver Avenue (CMT) Leeds, AL
Building & Earth Project No : BH190345

Ladies and Gentlemen:

On this date, representative(s) of Building & Earth were present to perform construction material
testing services at this project site. Our testing and observations for this date include the following:

FO-78 : Field Observations made on this date.
• Site Observation For Information Only

Closing

The testing and observations identified above have been reviewed by our project manager. If
you have questions regarding this information, please do not hesitate to contact us.

Respectfully Submitted,
Building & Earth Sciences, LLP

Enclosures : FO-78

5545 Derby Drive
Birmingham, AL 35210
Phone 205-836-6300  Fax 205-836-9007
www.BuildingandEarth.com

Geovault, LLC.

Reviewed By

Page 1 of 2

54



10/07/2020

Field Observations Report

Project Name: Cottages on Weaver Avenue (CMT) Leeds,
AL Project Number: BH190345

Client Name: Grants Mill, LLC Placement#: FO-78

Contractor: Tortorigi Construction Technician: Danny Embry

Monitoring: Site Observation

1 : Site Observation

Per our contract with Grants Mill, LLC, a site visit was made on this day to the Cottages on Weaver Avenue located in Leeds, Alabama.
 The purpose of this site visit was to observe grading operations prior to paving. A proofroll had been observed by a Building and Earth
 representative on the previous day (Octorber 6, 2020). Movement of areas located along the curb had been observed during this
 proofroll which would require undercutting. The purpose of this site was to observe remedial work along the curb being performed.

Upon my arrival onsite representatives of Dunn Construction were undercutting approximately 4 inches below the basestone along the
 curb. It was decided that the undercut area would be backfilled with additional asphalt. Undercutting operations were not complete
 during this visit to the site.

5545 Derby Drive
Birmingham, AL 35210
Phone 205-836-6300  Fax 205-836-9007
www.BuildingandEarth.com

Geovault, LLC.

Reviewed By

Page 2 of 2

55



 

EXHIBIT "A" 
 

Existing Letter of Credit Surety 
 
 
 

 See attachment for the existing Letter of Credit maintenance surety for the public right-
of-way infrastructure in the amount of $50,000 currently held by the City of Leeds for The 
Cottages on Weaver subdivision. 

 

56



57



Date: 2/28/2022

Item Description of Work Quantity Unit Price Total Cost

Curb 30" Valley Gutter 3660 LF Lum Sum 274,718.98$             

Inlet Single wing top and throats 18 QTY Lum Sum -$                           

Inlet Double wing top and throats 3 QTY Lum Sum -$                           

Base & Binder 6" Base & 3" Binder layers 4654 SY Lum Sum -$                           

Sealcoat 1" Wearing surface 4654 SY Lum Sum -$                           

274,718.98$             

41,207.85$               

41,207.85$               

50,000.00$               

**Reference attachment that includes page from subcontract with site contractor indicating lump sum value provided for roadway 

portion of scope of work. -BR

LOC Amount Rounded Up

The Cottages of Weaver Avenue Subdivision

City of Leeds Certificate of Deposit Cost Summary Sheet

Sum

15% Total Value of Improvements

LOC Amount

58



59



 

EXHIBIT "B" 

 
        City of Leeds Public Right-of-way Acceptance Letter  

 
 
 

See attachment for the City of Leeds public right-of-way acceptance letter for The 
Cottages on Weaver subdivision dated March 22, 2022.  

 
 

 

60



61



File Attachments for Item:

4. SA20-000012 - Street Acceptance - A request to release the performance bond related to 

Grand River South Residential Phase 1, 995 Rex Lake Rd, Leeds ,AL 35094, TPID 

2400264000001000, Zoned PCD: Planned Community Development.

62



63



64



 

 

June 29, 2023 
 

 
City of Leeds 
1404 9th Street 
Leeds, AL 35094 
 
Attention: Mr. Brad Watson, City Administrator 
CC:  Mr. Keith Hagar, PE 
 
Reference: Grand River South: Phase I Residential and Townhome Developments 
  Post Construction Stormwater BMP As-built Certification 
 
Dear Mr. Watson: 
 
Construction of the water quality pond for the above-referenced projects is complete.  I performed site inspections of the 
stormwater management measures and our survey crew took field shots on the pond and outlet structure on May 24, 2023 
to assess whether it accomplishes the design intent.  As-built information was compared to the design and it is our opinion 
that they match within tolerance. An Operations and Maintenance Plan is included with this letter and will be provided to 
the developer. 
 
Professional Engineer Certification: 
 
Based on my observations and assessment of the available information, I hereby confirm to the best of my knowledge and 
belief the stormwater management facility located on the Grand River property has been constructed in accordance with 
the approved design on file with the City of Leeds and meets the design intent. 
 
Please feel free to call me if you have any questions. 
 
Sincerely, 
 
SCHOEL ENGINEERING COMPANY, INC.   Seal: 
 

 
 
James M. Parsons, PE      Date:  June 29, 2023 
AL License No:  PE32451 
 
 
Enclosure 

65



 

 
 
Grand River Residential Development 
 
Post Construction Best Management Practices 
Operation and Maintenance Plan 
 
 
 
June 29, 2023 

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
Prepared by: 

 

66



BMP OPERATION AND MAINTENANCE PLAN 
Grand River Residential Development 
JUNE 29, 2023 

 
 
 

 
 
 

TABLE OF CONTENTS 
1.0 STORMWATER MANAGEMENT FACILITIES .................................................. 2 

1.1 EXTENDED DETENTION STORMWATER MANAGEMENT AREA ................................................. 2 

2.0 RESPONSIBLE PARTY .................................................................................. 3 
2.1 OWNER ................................................................................................................... 3 

3.0 MAINTENANCE PROCEDURES ..................................................................... 3 
3.1 ROUTINE MAINTENANCE ACTIVITIES ............................................................................... 3 
3.2 NON-ROUTINE MAINTENANCE ACTIVITIES ........................................................................ 4 
3.3 CORRECTIVE ACTIONS AND MODIFICATIONS ..................................................................... 5 
3.4 MAINTENANCE MATERIALS .......................................................................................... 5 
3.5 SAFETY ................................................................................................................... 6 

4.0 INSPECTION PROCEDURES .......................................................................... 6 

5.0 RECORDKEEPING ........................................................................................ 6 

6.0 SUMMARY ................................................................................................. 7 
 
 

APPENDIX 
ATTACHMENT 1 – APPLICABLE DESIGN DOCUMENTS 

ATTACHMENT 2 – MAINTENANCE SCHEDULE 

ATTACHMENT 3 – ANNUAL INSPECTION FORM 
 

  

67



BMP OPERATION AND MAINTENANCE PLAN 
Grand River Residential Development 
JUNE 29, 2023 

 
 
 

 
 

2 

1.0 STORMWATER MANAGEMENT FACILITIES 
This BMP Operation and Maintenance plan has been developed for the Grand River Residential 
development located in Leeds, Alabama.  This Plan was developed to prevent or minimize water 
quality impacts and ensure that the volume and velocity of pre-construction stormwater runoff 
is not significantly exceeded for the life of the property’s use.  The purpose of this plan is to 
identify the necessary reoccurring maintenance and operational activities and schedule of those 
activities to ensure that the BMPs continue to meet the original design intent and requirements. 

 
1.1 Extended Detention Stormwater Management Area 

The lake at the southwest corner of the developed area was constructed to manage 
stormwater of the Grand River residential area.  The lake’s functions are to provide 
stormwater control for both the water quality volume and for return-period storms.   
 
The goal of stormwater management is to control the water quality volume. Water 
quality volume is defined as the runoff from 1.1 inch of rainfall over the site. The water 
quality volume is controlled by the extended detention in the lake, which provides solids 
removal of well over 80%.  Another goal is to mitigate any peak rate increases from 
return-period storms (2 to 100-year events). This is managed by adding storage to the 
lake and raising the embankment. 

   
The design documents showing the location, size, and design details of the lake and its 
embankment can be found in Attachment 2.   
 
 
 

 
 
  

68



BMP OPERATION AND MAINTENANCE PLAN 
Grand River Residential Development 
JUNE 29, 2023 

 
 
 

 
 

3 

2.0 RESPONSIBLE PARTY 
The Owner or any successor in title shall maintain the stormwater facilities, BMP, basins, and 
drainage facilities and appurtenances.  Contact information for the Owner is provided below. 
 

2.1 Owner 
Billy Silver    
South Manager – Real Estate 
USS Real Estate 
610 Preserve Parkway, Suite 200 
Hoover, AL 35226   
 

3.0 MAINTENANCE PROCEDURES 
 
Following the maintenance procedures outlined in this plan for the lake are imperative to ensure 
the proper function of the systems.  Maintenance to stormwater treatment practices are 
necessary for them to operate as designed on a long-term basis.  The pollutant removal and 
flood control capabilities of these structural controls will decrease if maintenance is not 
performed.  Routine maintenance such as mowing and removing debris and trash is needed 
multiple times a year.  Removal of accumulated sediment is needed less frequently but requires 
more skilled labor and special equipment.  Inspection and repair of critical structural features 
such as embankments and the outlet structure should to be performed by a qualified 
professional that has experience in construction, inspection, and repair of these features.  A 
table summarizing the schedule of maintenance activities can be found in the Appendix as 
Attachment 5. 
 

3.1 Routine Maintenance Activities 
These activities can be completed without any prior correspondence with the City of 
Leeds or engineering consultant.  The majority of this work includes, but is not limited 
to the following: 
 
a) All components of the detention lake should be visually inspected following each 

1.0” or greater rainfall event. 

b) The outlet structure from the detention lake should be inspected for debris which 
could inhibit the proper flow of discharge.  Any debris should be removed 
immediately and disposed of or placed in a location to prevent future maintenance 
and to not cause impact upstream or downstream of the structure. 

c) Trash should be removed immediately if observed in or around the lake. 

69



BMP OPERATION AND MAINTENANCE PLAN 
Grand River Residential Development 
JUNE 29, 2023 

 
 
 

 
 

4 

d) Mowing of banks and slopes and area around lake should be performed on a 
monthly basis during growing season and as needed during cooler months. 

 
3.2 Non-Routine Maintenance Activities 

Activities which require replacement of components meeting the same design and 
specification of the original plan are considered non-routine maintenance activities.  
These activities can be completed without any prior correspondence with the City of 
Leeds or engineering consultant.  Non-routine maintenance activities include, but are 
not limited to the following: 
 
a) Lake slopes and embankment should be inspected for re-growth of trees annually.  

Any tree re-growth should be cut and removed from the ponded area. 

b) Sediment from the site may accumulate in the lake bottom and reduce the lake to 
below design volume requirements.  Sediment from the lake shall be excavated if 
the lake bottom elevation reaches a level that allows excessive aquatic growth or 
reduces lake efficiency such, that the sediments are passing through the discharge 
structure and released offsite.  Inspection for sediment accumulation should be 
performed annually.   

c) Stabilization or re-grading of side slopes may be required periodically or after 
excessive rain events and annually.  Any disturbance of slopes should be reseeded 
and may require installation of erosion control materials until seeding can 
reestablish adequate grasses to prevent future erosion. 

d) Establishing ingress and egress points to key features such as riser structures, 
embankments, outfall and infalls, and lake bottom is critical to maintaining 
stormwater structural controls.  Access points to the structures should be 
established and maintained on an annual basis. 

e) Pipe structures through embankments are designed to be watertight.  If these 
pipes are damaged, they may leak water into the embankment through holes or 
separated joints.  This can lead to piping of water along the pipe, which results in 
erosion and can lead to embankment failure.  Extreme storm events, chemical 
attack, abrasion or other unforeseen circumstances may cause damage to these 
structures.  Inspection of risers, pipes, and embankments for damage should be 
performed once a year.  Damage should be reported and plans to repair or retrofit 
the structure should be implemented in a timely manner to prevent further 
damage or failure. 

 
  

70



BMP OPERATION AND MAINTENANCE PLAN 
Grand River Residential Development 
JUNE 29, 2023 

 
 
 

 
 

5 

3.3 Corrective Actions and Modifications 
Any corrective actions that will modify the BMP(s) design components are considered 
design modifications and must be reviewed by the City of Leeds.  In addition, the owner 
must consult with the engineering consultant prior to conducting any activities which 
may be considered a modification of the original design. 
 
3.4 Maintenance Materials 

In the event that any of the media or other surface materials needs to be replaced 
during routine or non-routine maintenance, the material shall be replaced in 
accordance with the original design (see Figure 1 below).   
 
 
Figure 1.  Outlet Structure Design Detail 
 

 
 

71



BMP OPERATION AND MAINTENANCE PLAN 
Grand River Residential Development 
JUNE 29, 2023 

 
 
 

 
 

6 

 
3.5 Safety 

Safety considerations should be taken when conducting maintenance activities.  
Hazards should be anticipated and avoided.  Confined spaces should not be entered 
without proper training, monitoring, and equipment. 
 
 

4.0 INSPECTION PROCEDURES 
For post-construction BMPs to continue to function in accordance with their original design and 
installation, annual inspections are required by the City of Leeds.  The Owner is required to 
conduct annual inspections and submit the Annual Inspection Form (Attachment 6) to the City 
of Leeds.  The minimum documentation requirements for inspections are as follows: 

a) Facility type; 

b) Inspection date; 

c) Name and signature of qualified inspector; 

d) Site location; 

e) Owner information (name, address, phone number, fax, and email); 

f) Checklist of BMPs that must be inspected and required condition of BMPs to 
ensure proper functioning.  Description of the existing stormwater BMP condition 
that may include the quality of: vegetation and soils; inlet and outlet channels and 
structures, embankments, slopes, and safety benches; permeable paving; 
spillways, weirs, and other control structures; and sediment and debris 
accumulation in storage and forebay areas as well as in and around inlet and outlet 
structures; 

g) Photographic documentation of all critical stormwater BMP components; 

h) Determination of whether the BMP operations and maintenance has adhered to 
the BMP Operations and Maintenance Plan and any specific maintenance items or 
violations that need to be corrected by the owner/operator of the stormwater 
control or BMP; and 

i) Maintenance agreements for long-term BMP operations and maintenance. 
 
 

5.0 RECORDKEEPING 
To ensure BMPs are being properly maintained, the City of Leeds’s NPDES permit requires an 
annual inspection report to be submitted.  This annual report should provide documentation 
that maintenance was performed in accordance with the Operation and Maintenance plan.  The 

72



BMP OPERATION AND MAINTENANCE PLAN 
Grand River Residential Development 
JUNE 29, 2023 

 
 
 

 
 

7 

annual report should be submitted to the City of Leeds no later than September 30th.  Should 
maintenance be needed because of the Annual Inspections, the Owner shall provide the City of 
Leeds documentation of the maintenance required and a schedule for completing all 
maintenance activities.  Upon completion of maintenance activities, the Owner shall provide 
documentation to the City of Leeds of the maintenance performed and that the BMP operates 
as it was designed.  In addition, records of all maintenance activities, inspections, and corrective 
actions should be kept in an easily accessible location. 

 
 

6.0 SUMMARY 
This Operation and Maintenance Plan was developed in accordance with the City of Leeds 
Regulations.  The contents of this Plan identify the necessary reoccurring maintenance and 
operational activities and schedule of those activities necessary to ensure that the BMPs 
continue to meet the original design intent and standards of ordinance.  It is the responsibility 
of the Owner to operate and maintain the stormwater management facility and/or BMPs in 
accordance the original design intent and approval.  Should the BMPs be modified as to no 
longer operate in the manner as originally designed, this document should be reviewed and 
revised accordingly.  Supporting exhibits and documents are included in the Appendix to this 
report. 

73



BMP OPERATION AND MAINTENANCE PLAN 
Grand River Residential Development 
JUNE 29, 2023 

 
 
 

 
 
 

 
APPENDIX 
ATTACHMENT 1 – APPLICABLE DESIGN DOCUMENTS 

ATTACHMENT 2 – MAINTENANCE SCHEDULE 

ATTACHMENT 3 – ANNUAL INSPECTION FORM 

  

74



BMP OPERATION AND MAINTENANCE PLAN 
Grand River Residential Development 
JUNE 29, 2023 

 
 
 

 
 
 

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

ATTACHMENT 1 
APPLICABLE DESIGN DOCUMENTS 

  

75



REVISIONS:

DRAWING SET:

g:/21/601/Civil/Design/

2
0
5
.
3
2
3
.
6
1
6
6

B
i
r

m
i
n

g
h
a

m
,
 
A
l
a
b
a

m
a
 
3
5
2
0
5

1
0
0
1
 
2
2
n

d
 

S
t
r
e
e
t
 
S

o
u
t
h

2
5
6
.
5
3
9
.
1
2
2
1

H
u

n
t
s
v
i
l
l
e
,
 
A
l
a
b
a

m
a
 
3
5
8
0
2

7
5
0
0
 

M
e

m
o
r
i
a
l
 
P

k
w

y
 

S
W
,
 
S
t
e
 
2
0
9

E
n

v
i
r
o

n
m

e
n
t
a
l
 
 
 
 

W
a
t
e
r
 
R

e
s
o

u
r
c
e
s
 
 
 
 

L
a
s
e
r
 
S

c
a

n
n
i
n

g
+

M
o

d
e
l
i
n

g

C
i
v
i
l
 
E

n
g
i
n
e
e
r
i
n

g
 
 
 

L
a

n
d
 

S
u
r
v
e

y
i
n

g
 
 
 

L
a

n
d
s
c
a

p
e
 

A
r
c

h
i
t
e
c
t
u
r
e

S
C

H
O

E
L
.
C

O
M

No. 32451

J
A

M

E
S
 M.PAR

S
O

N
S

REENIG
N

E

D
ERETSIGE

R

A
MABAL

A

PROFESSIONAL

Copyright  c  2022 Schoel Engineering Company, Inc.

L
E
E

D
S
, 

A
L

T
O

W
N

H
O

M
E
 D

E
V

E
L
O

P
M

E
N

T
G

R
A

N
D
 R
IV

E
R
 S

O
U

T
H

FILE NAME:

CHECKED BY: J.M.P.

DRAWN BY: SFS/RJS/JMH

   OF  33

CONSTRUCTION SET 08-05-2022

W
.V
.

S
ig
n

S
ig
n

S
ig

n

S
ig
n

S
ig
n

92.39

W
.V
.

W
.V
.W
.V
.

9
1.3

8

9
0
.4

8

8
9
.2

8

8
8
.2

8

8
9
.4

2

9
0
.9

5

9
1.7

7

90.72

9
3
.3

6

9
9
.5

S
ig

n

9
2
.9

1

9
2
.4

3

9
5
.3

9
5
.0

T
o
p
 
o
f
 
S
lo

p
e

98.8

93.7

9
0
.0

90
.2

9
0
.2

9
1.0

9
1.7

93.1

9
3
.8

94.3

9
2
.3

9
3
.6

95
.9

9
6
.4

9
7
.5

91.3

9
2
.7

9
3
.5

9
4
.1

T
o
p
 
o
f
 
S
lo

p
e

92.6

94
.0

9
4
.9

9
5
.3

9
3
.5

9

9
4
.18

9
4
.8

2

9
3
.3

0

9
3
.8

0

9
4
.5

3

9
3
.0

2

9
3
.6

4

9
4
.4

5

2
4
"
 
R

C
P

A
s
p
h
a
lt P

a
v
in
gE
d
g
e
 
o
f S

h
o
u
ld
e
r

94.5

94.1

94.3

87.01

86.33

85.96

85.75

83.62

8
2
.7

0

8
7
.1

8
7
.2

8
7
.7

8
8
.0

8
6
.5

84.3

84.6

86.3

88.4

87.2

90.8

89.8

9
1.9

92.3

91.7

93.8

94.2

98.3

95.1

97.8

96.8

95.9

98.1

04.2

00.4

01.9

01.6

9
6
.7

87.10

B
o
tto

m
 

o
f S

lo
p
e

83.9

84.6

85.7

86.8

88.5

91.7

91.6

93.4

94.3

94.3

92.6

8
3
.4

8
4
.1

8
4
.8

8
5
.6

8
6
.3

8
6
.8

8
7
.3

A
s
p
h
a
lt P

a
v
in
g

8
4
.4

9
8
3
.8

0

8
2
.9

4

8
2
.17

8
5
.7

7

8
7
.4

7

8
8
.0

3

8
8
.9

5

8
9
.9

5

9
0
.8

4

9
1.7

3

9
2
.6

0

8
5
.2

8

8
6
.0

2

8
6
.8

8

8
7
.5

9

8
8
.2

7

8
9
.18

8
9
.7

1

9
0
.0

8

9
1.0

5

9
2
.0

3

9
2
.9

0

8
5
.8

5

8
6
.6

3

8
7
.2

9

8
7
.4

7

8
7
.2

9

8
8
.0

8

8
9
.4

2

9
1.3

8

94.75

98.43

01.68

02.15

92.15

89.53

89.57
89.37

89.87

91.27

8
9
.9

5

8
8
.9

1
8
8
.2

6

8
8
.19

8
9
.0

9

89.74

90.19

91.66 90.59

90.10

90.34

9
0
.9

2

9
0
.4

7

8
9
.9

6

88.3

89.0

9
0
.9

94.2

01.4

89.9

02.04

95.35

92.37
90.53

90.10

9
0
.2

8

9
1.2

7

9
1.9

4

9
2
.2

7

S
ig
n

T
ra

n
s

m
is
s
io
n
 
T
o

w
e
r

C
o
n
c
re
te
 
P
o
le

81.3

82.9

80.4

82.3

80.9

81.0

80.1

8
3
.3

8

8
4
.2

1

8
4
.9

4

8
3
.7

6

8
4
.5

7

8
3
.6

6

8
4
.4

0

8
5
.11

W

W

W

W

W

W

W

W

W

W

W

W

W

W

W

W

W

W

W

W

W

W

W

W

W

W

W

W

W

W

W

W

W

W

W

W

W

W

W

W

W

W

W

W

W

W

W

W

W

W

W

W

8
"
 

W
a
te
r L
in
e

8
"
 

W
a
te
r
 
L
in
e

2
4
"
 

W
a
t
e
r
 

M
a
in

2
4
"
 

W
a
te
r
 

M
a
inW
.V
.

3
6
"
 

W
a
te
r
 

M
a
in

3
6
"
 

W
a
t
e
r
 

M
a
in

8
" W

ater Line

G
a
s
 

M
a
r
k
e
r

2
4
"
 

W
a
te
r
 

M
a
in

8" W
ater Line

12" Water Line

2
4
"
 

W
a
te
r
 
L
in
e

F
L
=
6
8
6
.9

5
'

2
4
"
 
R

C
PS
tu

b
 

U
p

8
"
 
P

V
C
 

8
"
 

W
a
t
e
r
 
L
in
e

T
r
a
n
s

m
is
s
io

n
 

L
in

e

T
r
a
n
s

m
is
s
io

n
 

L
in

e

7
4
0

7
4
0

7
3
0

73
0

730

7
3
0

7
3
0

7
3
0

730

7
2
0

7
2
0

72
0

7
2
0

72
0

7
2
0720

7
10

7
10

7
10

710

7
10

7
10

7
10

6
7
0

6
7
0

6
7
0

670

6
8
0

6
8
0

680

6
8
0

690

690

6
9
0

70
0

7
0
0

700

7
0
0

700

7
0
0

7
0
0

7
1
0

7
10

7
2
0

7
3
0

695

6
9
5

7
0
0

6
9
0

690

7
0
0

7
0
0

6
9
5

695

6
9
0690

6
9
0

6
9
0

6
9
0

6
9
5

6
8
5

6
8
5

6
8
5

6
8
5

69
0

68
5

6
8
5

68
0

69
5

70
0

70
4

03

6
9
0

02

6
9
5

6
9
0

9
3

9
1

9
7

91

91

69
0

91

92

92

91

91

91

7
0
5

H.P.

FL24
"Out(S

E)=7
05.8

0
Top=

714.
15Yard

 Inle
t

7
1
5

FL24
"Out(S

W)=6
96.8

9
FL24

"In(N
W)=6

96.9
0

Top=
702

.99Inlet

FL24
"Out(S

E)=6
97.7

5
FL24

"In(N
W)=6

97.9
5Top=

703
.24

Yard
 Inle

t

710

705

Mark
er

Water

T
r
e
e
 

L
in
e

FL24
"Out(S

E)=6
92.8

2
FL24

"In(N
E)=6

93.2
5

FL24
"In(S

W)=6
93.6

5
Top=

698.
30Stor

m MH

7
0
0

7
0
5

7
0
0

T
ree Line

G
ra

v
e
l

6
9
5

6
7
5

680

R
ip
 

R
a
p

FL48
"RCP=675

.18Head
wall

4
8
"
R

C
P

685

FL24
"RCP=680

.10Head
wall

Sign 

Stone

2
4
"

R
C

P

R
ip
 
R
a
p

T
re

e
 
L
in
e

FL24
"Out(S

W)=6
82.0

3
FL24

"In(N
E)=6

82.1
6

Top=
690.

45Yard
 Inle

t

36" 
RCP)(Lies

 abo
ve

18"R
CP

18
"
R

C
P

FL48
"Out(S

W)=6
75.3

1
FL36"

In(NE)=6
78.3

7
FL18"

In(NE)=6
85.9

1
Top=

690.
57Yard

 Inle
t

FL18"
Out(S

W)=6
85.9

5
FL18"

In(NE)=6
86.4

9
Top=

690.
80Stor

m MH

FL18"
Out=6

86.8
1

Top=
690.

89Stor
m MH

FL36"
Out(S

W)=6
79.4

0
FL36"

In(NE)=6
79.4

5
Top=

691.
26Stor

m MH

3
6
"
R

C
P

FL18"
Out(S

E)=6
86.5

7
FL18"

In(NW)=6
89.4

5Top=
692.

71Stor
m MH

18
"
R
C
P

FL18"
Out=6

89.6
9

Top=
692.

57Stor
m MH

18"
RCP

Sign
 

8
"
 

W
a
te
r
 
L
in
e

8
"
 

W
a
te
r
 
L
in
e

Sign
 

6
9
5

FL8"O
ut(N

E)=6
90.2

1
FL8"I

n(NW)=6
90.3

4Top=
696.

49Sani
tary

 MH
2
4
"

R
C

P

FL24
"Out(S

E)=6
92.0

9
FL24

"In(N
W)=6

92.4
2Top=

697.
64Stor

m MH

FL8"O
ut(N

E)=6
88.8

9
FL8"I

n(SW)=6
89.1

3Top=
700

.96Sani
tary

 MH

8
"

D
IP

8
"
D
IP A
s
p
h
a
lt
 
P
a
v
in

g

18
"
 

V
a
lle

y
 

G
u
t
t
e
r

8
"

D
IP

FL8"O
ut(N

E)=6
87.9

9
FL8"I

n(SW)=6
88.0

1Top=
702

.24Sani
tary

 MH

FL24
"Out=6

93.4
2Top=

696.
32

Inlet

8"
DIP

Sign
 

WV 

WV 

6
9
0

18
"
 
C
o
n
c
. C

&
G

N
 
12

8
12

0
0

N
 
12

8
11

0
0

N
 
12

8
10

0
0

N
 
12

8
0
9
0
0

E 2241000

E 2241100

E 2241200

E 2241300

E 2241400

E 2241500

N
 
12

8
13

0
0

N
 
12

8
14

0
0

N
 
12

8
15

0
0

N
 
12

8
16

0
0

N
 
12

8
17

0
0

N
 
12

8
18

0
0

E 2240900

N
 
12

8
0
8
0
0

C
IT

Y
 

O
F
 
B
IR

M
IN

G
H

A
M

R
E

X
 

L
A

K
E
 

R
O

A
D

ROAD 
SW

ZEI
GLER 

U
N

A
L
I L

A
N

E

ALLEY 1

ALLEY 2

UNALI TOWNES LOOP

U
N

A
L
I 
T

O
W

N
E

S
 

L
O

O
P

UNALI TOWNES LOOP

U
N

A
L
I 
T

O
W

N
E

S
 

L
O

O
P

1819202122
27

33
32

31

23242526 17

5
15 168 9 10 11 12 13 14

6 7

1
2

3
4

3834

47 46 45 44 43

42414039373635

52 51 50 49 48

53

28
29

30

C
O

M
M

O
N

C
O

M
M

O
N

C
O

M
M

O
N

C
O

M
M

O
N

C
O

M
M

O
N

C
O

M
M

O
N

C
O

M
M

O
N

C
O

M
M

O
N

C
O

M
M

O
N

C
O

M
M

O
N

C
O

M
M

O
N

C
O

M
M

O
N

C
O

M
M

O
N

C
O

M
M

O
N

C
O

M
M

O
N

C
O

M
M

O
N

C
O

M
M

O
N

C
O

M
M

O
N

C
O

M
M

O
N

EUNEVA REVIR DNARG

A

U
N

A
L
I   L

A
N

E

56

C
IT

Y
 

O
F
 
L
E
E

D
S

ROADWAY EXPANSIONFUTURE 

COMMON AREA

D
-
4

D
-
5

D
-
1
4

D-3

D-3

D
-
7

D
-
6

D-3

D
-
1
2

D-10

D-9

D-3

D
-
8

D
-
1
8

D
-
9

D-12

0
0

0
5

10

15

2
2

7
2
0

725

15

10

0
50
0

05

0
5

05

10

10

10

15

15

15

05
10

10

15

15

2
0

2
5

3
0

3
5

35

40

45

30

25

20

15

0
0

0
0

9
5

95

00

15

25

20

25

30

35

40

05

20

0
1

01

0
2

02 03 04 06

0
8

08

09
11 12 16 17

1
8

96 97 98 99

95

0
0

05 10 15

1
5

2
0

2
0

1
4

19

98

02

04

12

14
16 17

17

0
7

0
8

0
1

0
2

1
3

1
4

19
18

17

17

16141312110
9

0
8

0
7

0
6

0
4

0
3

0
2

0
1

9
9

9
8

9
7

9
6

9
6

11

12 13

1
4

0
9

0
8

0
7

0
6

16

17

18

19

0
3

04
05

07 08
09 10

11

12 13 14

15

16

02

04 08

12

14

0
9

0
1

0
2

0
3

0
4

0
1

1
3

1
4

1
5

16

2
0

2
5

2
0

0
5

95

0
4

0
30
2

9
6

9
8

99
01 02

98

9
7

9
8

9
4

9
5

9
7

6
9
5

9
3

9
3

6
9
3

9
4

9
5

6
7
5

7
4

7
2

72

74

68
0 68

5

8
0

20

D-1
4

9
2
.5

0
+

+
9
2
.5

0

9
2

9
2

9
3 9
4

6
9
2

6
9
1

6
9
0

6
8
0

6
9
1

0
0

0
5

10

15 18

2
2

7
2
0

725

18

15

10

0
50
0

9
4

9
6

9
3

9
3

6
9
5

9
3

6
9
3

8
0

6
8
0

6
8
5

68
5

69
0

68
0

6
7
5

0
0

0
5

10

15 18

2
1

2
2

7
2
0

725

18

15

10

0
50
0

9
4

9
3

9
3

6
9
3

6
7
5

68
5

8
0

0
1

3:
1

3:1

67
0

6
7
5

7
4

7
2

6
7
0

7
2

6
8
5

+
H

P

6
8
0

6
9
0

3:1

69
0

+HP

3
:1

6
8
5

+
H
P

6
7
5

6
7
0

+
8
8
.5

0
6
8
5

8
2

8
4

+
8
8
.5

0

3
:1

68
0

D
-
15

D-11

D-15

D-15

D-15

D
-
16

D
-
17

D
-
19

D-
20

A

D-20A
D-20A

D
-
2
2

D
-
2
1

D
-
2
5

D-2
5

D
-
2
4

D-2
4

D
-
2
6

D
-
7

STA. 0+00 D-14

STA. 1+43 D-3

STORM MANHOLE

STA. 0+00 D-13

STA. 8+21 D-3

SW CURB INLET

STA. 0+00 D-7

STA. 0+00 D-6

STA. 4+42 D-3

STORM MANHOLE

STA. 0+00 D-5

STA. 0+00 D-4

STA. 2+38 D-3

STORM MANHOLE

STA. 2+24

HEADWALL

STA. 0+42

GUTTER INLET

STA. 0+22

GUTTER INLET

STA. 0+65

GUTTER INLET

STA. 0+00 D-19

STA. 0+00 D-18

STA. 5+17 D-15

GUTTER INLET

STA. 0+22

HEADWALL

STA. 0+22

GUTTER INLET

STA. 0+44

GRATE INLET

STA. 0+00 D-17

STA. 0+00 D-16

STA. 0+40 D-15

STORM MANHOLE

STA. 0+00

FLARED END SECTION

STA. 0+48

GUTTER INLET

STA. 0+79

GUTTER INLET

STA. 1+03

GUTTER INLET

STA. 1+04

GRATE INLET

STA. 0+22

GUTTER INLET

STA. 0+00 D-21

STA. 0+37 D-20A

GRATE INLET

STA. 0+22

GUTTER INLET

STA. 0+00 D-22

STA. 1+74 D-20A

GUTTER INLET

STA. 0+64

GUTTER INLET

STA. 1+84

GRATE INLET

STA. 0+39

SW CURB INLET

STA. 0+43

TEMPORARY YARD INLET

FUTURE CURB INLET

STA. 0+38

HEADWALL

STA. 0+43

SW CURB INLET

STA. 0+77

GRATE INLET

STA. 0+33

TEMPORARY YARD INLET

FUTURE CURB INLET

STA. 1+71

GUTTER INLET

STA. 0+00 D-10

STA. 1+46 D-9

GUTTER INLET

STA. 0+22

SW CURB INLET

STA. 1+92

GRATE INLET

D
-
11

D
-
1
5

D
-
6

+
H

P

9
2

69
1

9
5

95

STA. 0+00

EXISTING CURB INLET

CONNECT TO

INSTALL NEW 36" HEADWALL

GROUT CONNECTION FOR WATERTIGHT SEAL

MATCH EXISTING PIPE GRADE

CONNECT NEW 36" RCP 20LF TO EXISTING RCP

REMOVE EXISTING OUTLET CONTROL BOX

PRIOR TO CONSTRUCTING D-3

EXISTING FLOW LINE ELEVATION

CONTRACTOR TO VERIFY 

CONNECT TO EXISTING INLET

STA. 1+25

YARD INLET

STA. 0+00

HEADWALL

STA. 0+00

HEADWALL

INLET TO YARD INLET

CONVERT EXISTING 

INLET TO YARD INLET

CONVERT EXISTING 

STA. 1+19

GRATE INLET

DOME TYPE

CONNECTION

FOR FUTURE 

24" RCP 

AND CAP 

STUB OUT 

(SEE DET)

DIVERSION DITCH

06

STA. 0+88

OUTLET STRUCTURE

D
-2

7

D
-
2
8

STA. 1+30

GRATE INLET

17

18

25

20

STA. 0+00 D-12

STA. 0+00 D-9

STA. 7+48 D-3

STORM MANHOLE

STA. 6+94 D-3

STORM MANHOLE

D-15

STA. 0+00 D-25

STA. 0+00 D-24

STA. 1+60 D-15

STORM MANHOLE

STA. 1+05

GRATE INLET

STA. 1+41

STORM MANHOLE

STA. 1+63

GRATE INLET

STA. 0+00 D-11

STA. 1+99 D-9

STORM MANHOLE

STA. 1+49

GUTTER INLET

STA. 4+32

GRATE INLET

STA. 4+12 

GUTTER INLET

STA. 3+90 

GUTTER INLET

D
-
13

D
-
3

D-3

STA. 0+00 D-12

STA. 0+00 D-9

STA. 7+99 D-3

STORM MANHOLE

STA. 3+66 D-15

MANHOLE

STA. 2+05 D-15

GUTTER INLET

STA. 2+28

GUTTER INLET

STA. 7+58

GUTTER INLET

STA. 7+80

GUTTER INLET

D-20A, D-21, D-22

PRIOR TO CONSTRUCTING

LOSATION AND FLOW LINE

EXISTING STORM PIPE

CONTRACTOR TO VERIFY

STA. 0+OO D-20-A

STORM LINE

CONNECTION TO EXISTING 

STORM MANHOLE

DOGHOUSE TYPE

 
E

O
P

+
16
.4

5

 
EO

P
+1
6.

5
5

 
E
O
P

+
19
.5

0

 
E
O
P

+
19
.5

0

 
E
O
P

+
19
.7

5

EOP00.
70+

E
O
P

9
5
.5

5
+

E
O

P
+
9
2
.3

3
E

O
P

9
2
.3

2
+

EOP

93.50+

EOP

93.36+

VALVEF.H
. &

NI
A

M
 

R
E

T
A

W
 

"
61

0 50 100 150 2007540

Graphic Scale

Scale: 1" = 40'

M
A

T
C

H
 

L
IN

E
 

A
R

E
A
 
2

M
A

T
C

H
 

L
IN

E
 

A
R

E
A
 
1

FOR CONSTRUCTION SITE SAFETY.

THE ENGINEER. THE CONTRACTOR IS RESPONSIBLE

JOB SAFETY IS NOT THE RESPONSIBILITY OF 

 

PRIOR TO CONSTRUCTION. 

AND SHOULD BE FIELD VERIFIED IN THE FIELD 

ARE FROM LOCAL UTILITY COMPANY RECORDS 

UNDERGROUND UTILITIES SHOWN ON THIS MAP

21601_GP1

12

PLAN AREA 1
DRAINAGE 
GRADING AND

FINISHED FLOOR ELEVATIONS.

GRADES AND THE LOT GRADES SHOWN ARE 

1.  GRADES SHOWN ON THIS PLAN ARE FINISHED 

NOTE: 

1                       CB# 1                 9-01-22

1

1

1

1

1

1

76



23

PROP. GRADE

EXIST. GRADE

LEGEND

PROFILES
STORM 

21601-STMPRO5

2

1                      CB# 3                 01-06-2023

REVISIONS:

DRAWING SET:

g:/21/601/Civil/Design/

2
0

5
.
3

2
3
.
6

1
6

6

B
i
r

m
i
n

g
h

a
m
,
 

A
l
a

b
a

m
a
 

3
5

2
0

5

1
0
0
1
 
2
2
n

d
 

S
t
r
e
e
t
 
S

o
u
t
h

2
5
6
.
5
3
9
.
1
2
2
1

H
u

n
t
s
v
i
l
l
e
,
 
A
l
a
b
a

m
a
 
3
5
8
0
2

7
5
0
0
 

M
e

m
o
r
i
a
l
 
P

k
w

y
 

S
W
,
 
S
t
e
 
2
0
9

E
n

v
i
r
o

n
m

e
n
t
a
l
 
 
 
 

W
a
t
e
r
 

R
e
s

o
u
r
c

e
s
 
 
 
 

L
a
s

e
r
 
S

c
a

n
n
i
n

g
+

M
o

d
e
l
i
n

g

C
i
v
i
l
 
E

n
g
i
n
e
e
r
i
n

g
 
 
 

L
a

n
d
 

S
u
r
v
e

y
i
n

g
 
 
 

L
a

n
d
s
c
a

p
e
 

A
r
c

h
i
t
e
c
t
u
r
e

S
C

H
O

E
L
.

C
O

M

No. 32451

J
A

M

E
S
 M.PAR

S
O

N
S

REENIG
N

E

D
ERETSIGE

R

A
MABAL

A

PROFESSIONAL

Copyright  c  2022 Schoel Engineering Company, Inc.

L
E
E

D
S
, 

A
L

T
O

W
N

H
O

M
E
 D

E
V

E
L
O

P
M

E
N

T
G

R
A

N
D
 R
IV

E
R
 S

O
U

T
H

FILE NAME:

CHECKED BY: J.M.P.

DRAWN BY: SFS/RJS/JMH

   OF  33

CONSTRUCTION SET 08-05-2022

PROFILE STORM LINE D26
 SCALE 1" = 50' HORZ.

      1" = 10' VERT.

0+00 1+00 2+00

660

670

680

690

700

710

720

730

740

750

660

670

680

690

700

710

720

730

740

750

T
O

P
=
 
6
9
4
.6

8

S
T

A
. 

1
+
0
4

G
R

A
T

E
 
IN

L
E

T

T
O

P
=
 
6
9
4
.5

0

S
T

A
. 

1
+
1
9

G
R

A
T

E
 
IN

L
E

T

F
L
 
IN

=
6
8
9
.6

4

F
L
 

O
U

T
=
6
9
1
.7

2

F
L
 
IN

=
6
9
1
.7

2

F
L
 

O
U

T
=
6
9
1
.8

7

 @ 2.00% SLOPE

104.24 LF 18" DIA. RCP (CLIII)  @ 0.97% SLOPE

15.51 LF 18" DIA. RCP (CLIII)

T
O

P
=
 
6
9
2
.5

7

S
T

A
. 

X
+

X
X
 
(
E

X
IS

T
)

S
T

A
. 

0
+
0
0
 

D
-
2
6

G
R

A
T

E
 
IN

L
E

T

Q = 5.20 cfs

DA = 0.82 acres  Q = 0.57 cfs

DA = 0.10 acres  

PROFILE STORM LINE D27
 SCALE 1" = 50' HORZ.

      1" = 10' VERT.

0+00 1+00 2+00

F
L
 
IN

=
6
6
8
.0

0

F
L
 

O
U

T
=
6
7

9
.5

0

T
O

P
=
 
6
8
8
.5

0

S
T

A
. 

0
+
8
8

O
U

T
L

E
T
 

S
T

R
U

C
T

U
R

E

660

670

680

690

700

710

720

730

650

640

660

670

680

690

700

710

720

730

650

640

S
T

A
. 

0
+
0
0

D
IS

S
IP

A
T

E
R
 

H
E

A
D

W
A

L
L

 @ 13.00% SLOPE

88.41 LF 30" DIA. RCP (CLIII)

TYP.

ANTI-SEEP COLLARS,

PROFILE STORM LINE D28
 SCALE 1" = 50' HORZ.

      1" = 10' VERT.

0+00 1+00 2+00

660

670

680

690

700

710

720

730

660

670

680

690

700

710

720

730

F
L
 
IN

=
6
6
8
.0

0

F
L
 

O
U

T
=
6
7

2
.5

0

 @ 3.60% SLOPE

125.15 LF 30" DIA. RCP (CLIII)

650

640640

650

T
O

P
=
 
6
7

9
.0

0

S
T

A
. 

1
+
2
5

Y
A

R
D
 
IN

L
E

T

S
T

A
. 

0
+
0
0

D
IS

S
IP

A
T

E
R
 

H
E

A
D

W
A

L
L

77



EXISTING GROUND FILTER FABRIC UNDER STONE 6" MINIMUM THICKNESS

50'

PUBLIC STREET

50'

PUBLIC STREET

N. T. S.

PLAN VIEW

SECTION VIEW

(TYPICAL)

2.  PLACE BARRIER PERPENDICULAR TO FLOW.

SEDIMENT RETENTION BARRIER (SRB)

SEDIMENT CONTROL

CROSS SECTION OF A SEDIMENT RETENTION BARRIER (N.T.S.):

FLOW

8-12 FT 4-6 FT

N.T.S.

FRONT VIEW

(NOT TO SCALE)

2
4
"
 

M
IN
.

1
8
"
 

M
IN
.

3
0
"
 

M
IN
.

3
0
' 

M
IN

2
4
' 

M
IN

1
8
"
 

M
IN

FLOW

6" MIN.

6
"
 

M
IN
.

SIDE VIEW

(NOT TO SCALE)

SILT FENCE TYPE A

N.T.S.

TYPE A SILT FENCE SEDIMENT BARRIER DETAIL

FRONT VIEW

FASTENERS FOR SILT FENCES

WOOD POST WITH STAPLE PLACEMENTWOOD POST WITH NAIL PLACEMENT

ROLL JOINT FOR JOINING TWO ADJACENT SILT FENCE SECTIONS

(NOT TO SCALE)

(NOT TO SCALE)

N.T.S.

SILT FENCE INSTALLATION DETAILS

SECTION B-B

SECTION A-A

PLAN VIEW

2
:1
 R

A
T
IO
-

M
IN
.

3
:1 R

A
T
IO
-M
IN
.

FILTER CLOTH

TOP OF DITCH

FLOW LINE GRADE

1' MIN.

VARIES

4
'

2' MIN.

LOG & BRUSH

A

A

B B

FLOW

5' MINIMUM

Lb
LOG & BRUSH DITCH CHECK

N.T.S.

7"

4' - 0" REINFORCED CONCRETE RETENTION BOX

ƒ" GALVANIZED STEEL BARS ON 8" CENTERS

TYPICAL WALLS AND BOTTOM REINFORCING

(NO. 4 BARS ON 6" CENTERS BOTH  WAYS)

7"

30" CONC. PIPE

(CLASS III)

5'-4"

4'-0"

N.T.S.

PLAN VIEW

30" RCP (CLIII)

8'

8"

(SEE STORM PROFILE)

(TYP)

8" D.I.P. @ 0.5% MIN. 

8" D.I.P. @ 0.5% MIN. 

8" D.I.P. 90°

7"

12"

8'

8
'-

0
"

9
'-

2
"

EL.=680.00'

POOL  EL.=685.00'  

EMERGENCY SPILLWAY  EL.=686.50'  

EL.=687.50'

EL.=688.50'

FL EL.=679.50'

CONC. SLOPE PAVED HEADWALL 

8" D.I.P.

8" D.I.P. 

EL.=681.50'

CONC. SLOPE PAVED HEADWALL 

EVERY 8'

M
IN
.

3
0
'

FILTER FABRIC SHOULD BE CLASS IV NON-WOVEN GEOTEXTILE
  
 
STREETS MUST BE REMOVED IMMEDIATELY.
ALL SEDIMENT SPILLED, DROPPED, WASHED, OR TRACKED ONTO PUBLIC
 
OF ANY MEASURES USED TO TRAP SEDIMENT.
ADDITIONAL STONE AS CONDITIONS DEMAND AND REPAIR AND/OR CLEANOUT 
EXISTING PAVEMENT.  THIS MAY REQUIRE PERIODIC TOP DRESSING WITH 
PREVENT TRACKING OR FLOWING OF SEDIMENT ONTO PUBLIC STREETS OR 
THE ENTRANCE SHALL BE MAINTAINED IN A CONDITION WHICH WILL 
 
PUBLIC STREET.
WILL BE LEAVING OR ENTERING A CONSTRUCTION SITE TO OR FROM A 
A STABILIZED PAD OF CRUSHED STONE SHALL BE LOCATED WHERE TRAFFIC
 
IS 2" TO 3" AVERAGE DIAMETER STONE MATERIAL.
STONE SHALL BE ALDOT COARSE AGGREGATE GRADATION NO.1 STONE WHICH 

PER LAYER

10" STRAW(PER LAYER, PER 75 LF)

16-17 LB SILT STOP POWDER

OF HOG WIRE

NETTING ON INSIDE

HOG WIRE

STEEL POSTS &

   STABILIZED.  MESH SIZE 1.11" X 0.77"

   FOOT OR GREATER.  USE POLYPROPYLENE NETTING THAT IS UV

   TO PASS AT A RATE OF 70 GALLONS PER MINUTE PER SQUARE

   WATER TO PASS THROUGH IT.  THE NETTING SHALL ALLOW WATER

3.  THE HOG WIRE AND NETTING SHOULD BE DESIGNED TO ALLOW

   (DO NOT COMPACT).

   APART.  PLACE LOOSE STRAW 3 FEET DEEP BETWEEN ROWS

4.  PLACE 2 PARALLEL ROWS OF HOG WIRE AND NETTING 4-6 FEET

FUNCTION OF THE SILT FENCE.

STORM WATER CLARITY CAN BE GREATLY IMPROVED WHILE UTILIZING THE

SILT FENCE BARRIER.  WITH THE USE OF SITE SPECIFIC SILT STOP POLYMER,

SITES TO TRAP THE FINE SEDIMENT AND CLAYS THAT FLOW THROUGH THE

OR BLENDED WITH SITE SPECIFIC SILT STOP POLYMER.  IT IS USED ON GRADED

AND NETTING, STANDING ABOUT 4-6 FEET APART, FILLED WITH STRAW MIXED

THE SEDIMENT RETENTION BARRIER (SRB) IS A DOUBLE ROW OF HOG WIRE

SILT STOP 25 LB PER ACRE

JUTE NETTING COVERED WITH

   POWDER EVENLY.

   FEET OF SRB.  USE SEED SPREADER TO APPLY SILT STOP

   SHOULD BE AROUND 50 POUNDS OF POWDER PER 75 LINEAR

   EVENLY THROUGHOUT THE STRAW.  APPLICATION RATES

5.  DRY SITE-SPECIFIC SILT STOP POWDER SHOULD BE SPREAD

MAX. WATER LEVEL

STAKES PLACED 10' O.C.

2" X 2" X 42" WOODEN 

2:1 MAX. SLOPE

STRAW WATTLE

TRIPLE STACK

STRAW WATTLE

9" DIAMETER

STRAW WATTLES

12" DIAMETER

M
IN
IM

U
M

1
6
"
 

DIAMETER THEN BOTTOM WATTLES 

TOP WATTLE SHOULD BE SMALLER

  SPOTS AS NECESSARY.

  KEEPING INSTALLATION AS LEVEL AS POSSIBLE, FILL LOW

1.  INSTALL IN AREAS WHERE STORMWATER WILL EXIT A SITE

FENCE BACKING

WOVEN WIRE

GROUND LINE

TRENCH - 6" MIN.

WOVEN WIRE FENCE

GEOTEXTILE FABRIC

    FASTENED TO THE WOVEN WIRE FENCING.

2. GEOTEXTILE FABRIC SHALL BE SECURLEY

    POSTS BY STAPLES OR WIRE TILES.

    FASTENED TO THE UPSTREAM SIDE OF

1. THE WOVEN WIRE FENCING SHALL BE

NOTES:

COMPACTED SOIL

GROUND LINE

1.3 LB/FT MIN

STEEL POSTS

10' MAX. O.C.

POST 1.3 LB/FT MIN

3RD REVISION DATED SEPTEMBER 2014.
AND STORMWATER MANAGEMENT ON CONSTRUCTION SITES AND URBAN AREAS
REFERENCE THE ALABAMA HANDBOOK FOR EROSION CONTROL, SEDIMENT CONTROL

SPACING CAN VARY TO AVOID OBSTACLES

DOUBLE ROWS OF SILT FENCE SHOULD BE SPACED 5 TO 8 FEET APART

POST (ONE POST APPLICABLE FOR TYPES A & B FENCE)

SILT FENCE ROLL 2
SILT FENCE ROLL 1

GROUND LINE

BOTTOM OF FABRIC

TO WITHIN APPROXIMATE 4"-6" ABOVE THE GROUND.

A MIN. OF 3 MORE EQUALLY SPACED DOWN THE POST

INSTALL FIRST FASTENER NEAR TOP OF FABRIC AND THEN

TOP OF GEOTEXTILE FABRIC

TOP OF FABRIC
2 STAPLES AT

OR MORE TIMES BEFORE INSTALLING THE POSTS.
ROLL THE ENDS OF EACH SECTION OF FENCE ONE

3RD REVISION DATED MARCH 2014.
AND STORMWATER MANAGEMENT ON CONSTRUCTION SITES AND URBAN AREAS
REFERENCE THE ALABAMA HANDBOOK FOR EROSION CONTROL, SEDIMENT CONTROL

LOGS & BRUSH

INTERMINGLED

FLOW

STREAM

  

8" CENTERS (GALVANIZED)

ƒ" STEEL BARS ON

(TYPICAL SECTION THROUGH EMBANKMENT)

POND OUTLET STRUCTURE

(SEE DETAIL)

ANTI-SEEP COLLARS

FOR STRUCTURES IN DAM.

INSTEAD OF STONE BEDDING

EARTH BEDDING TO BE USED

NOTE: 

TO WATERTIGHT SEAL

GROUT AS REQUIRED

TO WATERTIGHT SEAL

GROUT AS REQUIRED

@ 0.5% MIN. 

VALVE TO DRAIN

SLOPE 8" D.I.P. &

SERVICE ACCESS TO VALVE

VALVE AND WALL TO ALLOW 

MAINTAIN CLEARANCE BETWEEN 

INSTALL VALVE AND 8" D.I.P. TO

SECTION

FRONT
FOR VALVE

CONCRETE SUPPORT

(SEE DETAIL)

ANTI-SEEP COLLARS

(SEE DETAIL)

ANTI-SEEP COLLARS

(SEE SECTION)

NOT SHOWN

ANTI-SEEP COLLARS

TO WATERTIGHT SEAL

GROUT AS REQUIRED

FL. EL. = 685.00
ELEVATION OF THE LAKE,
CONTROLS THE POOL 
OF THE PIPE 
THE FL ELEVATION 
(**)

 (**) 
 685.00' 
FL. EL=

SHALL BE INSTALLED AS GRADING IS COMPLETED.
ALL DISTURBED AREAS ARE TO BE RE-VEGETATED. TOPSOIL RE-PLATING AND VEGETATION13)
REMOVED.
REMOVED. ALL COMPONENTS OF THE ACTIVE SYSTEM AND DISPOSAL AREA ARE TO BE
ONCE SITE IS ESTABLISHED, THE LAKE SKIMMER AND ACTIVE SYSTEM ARE TO BE12)
TURBIDITY IS IN EVIDENCE.
CONTINUE TO EMPLOY THE LAKE SKIMMER AND ACTIVE SYSTEM, AS REQUIRED WHILE 11)
ACCUMULATED SEDIMENTBACK TO ORIGINAL LAKE BOTTOM.
WITHIN PERMIT LIMITS USING ACTIVE SYSTEM AS REQUIRED. REMOVE AND DISPOSE OF
AT THE END OF THE GRADING OPERATION, PUMP LAKE DOWN BY RELEASING DISCHARGE10)
TREATMENT.
STABLE AND STORMWATER DISCHARGES ARE WITHIN PERMIT LIMITS WITHOUT ACTIVE
MAINTAIN LOCAL EROSION CONTROL MEASURES AND ACTIVE SYSTEM UNTIL SITE IS9)
STABILIZE ALL AREAS ACCORDING TO DIRECTIONS AS PER THE PLANS.8)
REMOVED COMPLETELY.
ASSOCIATED EROSION CONTROL MEASURES. ALL LOG AND BRUSH CHECKS MUST BE
AS SITE GRADES MOVE TOWARD FINAL SITE GRADES, INSTALL REMAINING DRAINAGE AND7)
ORDER TO PROVIDE STORM WATER STORAGE.
FEET BELOW NORMAL POOL ELEVATION BY PROPERLY DISCHARGING STORM WATER IN
AND COMPLY WITH PERMIT REQUIREMENTS. ATTEMPT TO KEEP POOL ELEVATION FIVE
OPERATE ACTIVE SYSTEM (DESCRIBED ABOVE) AS REQUIRED TO MANAGE TURBIDITY6)
BEGIN MASS GRADING OPERATION.5)
HOSES, THEN SKIMMER. 
INSTALL JUTE AND POLYMER FIELD, THEN GRAVITY DISTRIBUTION AND DISCHARGE4)

    TO MANAGE AND CONTROL RUNOFF.
3)    CONTRACTOR TO BRING GRADING UP ADJACENT TO POND, AS NEEDED, IN A MANNER
    HOLDING CAPACITY.

WEATHER FORECAST WHEN SCHEDULING THIS WORK, AS THE POND HAS LIMITED 
    UNTIL STEP 3 IS COMPLETE. CONTRACTOR TO MONITOR THE

CONSTRUCT LAKE, OUTLET STRUCTURE, THEN BLOCK LOWER LEVEL OUTLET 2)
PLANS.
LIMIT EQUIPMENT CROSSING OF DRAINAGE AREAS TO THOSE SPECIFIED ON THE 
INSTALL ALL MEASURES SHOWN ON SHEETS 4 AND 5 PRIOR TO ANY CLEARING.1)

EROSION CONTROL NARRATIVE

SECTIONAL VIEW

1'

DIRECTION OF FLOW

1' SPILL OVER (SEE OTHER VIEW)

1

3

FRONTAL VIEW

16' MIN.

2:
1 O

R 
FLATTER 

(T
YP.

)

N.T.S.

10' (TYP.)

4' (TYP.)

POND OR CHANNEL BOTTOM

ALDOT CLASS 2 RIP RAP

ALDOT CLASS 2 RIP RAP

JUTE FILTERED RIP RAP CHECK DAM

STONE 2' THICK

NO. 1 CRUSHED

(TYPICAL BOTH SIDES)

TIES TO EXISTING GROUND

COMPACTED FILL WHICH

NATURAL GROUND OR (TYP.)

5' (TYP.)

6'

(
T

Y
P
.)

5
'

SHOWN ARE MINIMUMS.

NOTE:  ALL DIMENSIONS

SPRINKLED WITH POLYACRYLAMIDE POWDER

JUTE MESH NETTING

CONSTRUCTION EXIT

3:1 SLOPE

3:1 SLOPE

27

21601-DET1

DETAILS
GRUBBING 
CLEARING AND

REVISIONS:

DRAWING SET:

g:/21/601/Civil/Design/

2
0
5
.
3
2
3
.
6
1
6
6

B
i
r

m
i
n

g
h
a

m
,
 
A
l
a
b
a

m
a
 
3
5
2
0
5

1
0

0
1
 
2

2
n

d
 

S
t
r
e

e
t
 
S

o
u
t
h

2
5
6
.
5
3
9
.
1
2
2
1

H
u

n
t
s
v
i
l
l
e
,
 
A
l
a
b
a

m
a
 
3
5
8
0
2

7
5

0
0
 

M
e

m
o
r
i
a
l
 
P

k
w

y
 

S
W
,
 
S
t
e
 

2
0

9

E
n

v
i
r
o

n
m

e
n
t
a
l
 
 
 
 

W
a
t
e
r
 

R
e
s

o
u
r
c

e
s
 
 
 
 

L
a
s

e
r
 
S

c
a

n
n
i
n

g
+

M
o

d
e
l
i
n

g

C
i
v
i
l
 
E

n
g
i
n

e
e
r
i
n

g
 
 
 

L
a

n
d
 

S
u
r
v
e

y
i
n

g
 
 
 

L
a

n
d

s
c

a
p

e
 

A
r
c

h
i
t
e

c
t
u
r
e

S
C

H
O

E
L
.
C

O
M

No. 32451

J
A

M

E
S
 M.PAR

S
O

N
S

REENIG
N

E

D
ERETSIGE

R

A
MABAL

A

PROFESSIONAL

Copyright  c  2022 Schoel Engineering Company, Inc.

L
E
E

D
S
, 

A
L

T
O

W
N

H
O

M
E
 D

E
V

E
L
O

P
M

E
N

T
G

R
A

N
D
 R
IV

E
R
 S

O
U

T
H

FILE NAME:

CHECKED BY: J.M.P.

DRAWN BY: SFS/RJS/JMH

   OF  33

CONSTRUCTION SET 08-05-2022

78



BMP OPERATION AND MAINTENANCE PLAN 
Grand River Residential Development 
JUNE 29, 2023 

 
 
 

 
 
 

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

ATTACHMENT 2 
MAINTENANCE SCHEDULE 

  

79



SCHEDULE OF MAINTENANCE ACTIVITIES  

FOR RETENTION PONDS 
 

Frequency Preventative Maintenance Actions 

Unscheduled 
As Needed 

• All components of the detention pond should be visually inspected following 
a 1.0” or greater rainfall event for obstructions or erosion 

Monthly to 
Quarterly 

• Inspect low flow orifices and outlet box for clogging 

• Check permanent pool for floating debris, trash, and undesirable vegetation 

• Investigate shoreline erosion or bare areas along pond slopes or embankment 

Semiannual 

• Mechanical components should be functional including drain valve and outlet 
structure bar rack. 

• Check drain valve for leaks 

• Weeding should be conducted twice a year to prevent undesirable vegetation 
from inhabiting the area 

• Do grassed areas require mowing and/or are clippings building up? 

Annually 

• Monitor for sediment deposition 

• Toe drain outlet should remain unclogged and unobstructed. 

• Inspect outlet structure box, barrel, and embankment for damage. 

• Inspect all pipes for structural damage, leaks, and piping. 

• Do impoundment and inlet areas show erosion, low spots, or lack of 
stabilization? 

• Is the outlet pipe damaged or otherwise not functioning properly? 

• Are trees or saplings present on the embankment? 

• Are animal burrows present? 

• Are there signs of vandalism? 

• Is there excessive algae growth, or has one type of vegetation taken over the 
facility? 

• Do the fence, gate, lock, or other safety devices need repair? 

• Inspect outlet channel for  undercutting and woody growth within 5 feet of 
near outlet headwall. 

 

80



BMP OPERATION AND MAINTENANCE PLAN 
Grand River Residential Development 
JUNE 29, 2023 

 
 
 

 
 
 

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

ATTACHMENT 3 
ANNUAL INSPECTION FORM 

81



 

Annual Inspection Form 
 
 
Irondale - Reviewed By:   Date:   
Comments: Approved � Incomplete �  Other � Notes:  
Required Attachments: Photographs � Maintenance Summary � 
 
Owner Information 
Facility Contact:         
Company/HOA:       
Address:        
City:   State:    Zip Code:  
Phone:   Email:       
 
Site Information: 
Facility/Site Name:       
Address/Location:     Latitude: ◦ ‘ “ 
    Longitude: ◦ ‘ “ 
 
Watershed - *Little Cahaba River � *Cahaba River �  
 Other:        � 
 
*Indicates a Priority watershed where streams have been included on a 303(d) list as impaired for 
sediment/siltation or have a Total Maximum Daily Load (TMDL) established for sediment/siltation. 
 
BMP Information: 
Pond Type: Detention �  Retention �  Underground �  Other �   
LID BMPs: Bio retention � Permeable Pavement �  Infiltration Swales � Other � 
Notes:   
Attachments: Narrative � Basin Maps � Photographs � 
 
Comments: 
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
 
Page 1 of 2  

82



 

Annual Inspection Form 
 
 
Inspection Observations: 
Latitude: ◦  ‘ “ Longitude: ◦ ‘ “ 
1. WQv orifice and filter: obstructed or damaged?    
2. Staged orifices: obstructed or damaged?          
3. Condition of vegetation or ground cover?        
4. Excessive trash accumulated?        
5. Emergency spillway clogged or damaged?    
6. Riser and trash rack: obstructed or damaged?    
7. Excessive sediment accumulation?    
8. LIP BMPs require maintenance?                
 
Maintenance Needed: 
   
   
   
  
  
 
Follow-up actions: 
Follow-up actions required: � Yes � No If Yes, please explain:    
     
     
     
  
 
PROFESSIONAL ENGINEER CERTIFICATION: 
� By affixing my professional seal and signature on this form, I hereby certify that this 
stormwater management facility provides the required water quality volume (WQv) and is being 
properly maintained in accordance with the technical memorandum listed in the City of 
Irondale’s Post-Construction Ordinance. In my professional opinion, the stormwater 
management facility is functioning as it was designed. 
 
� By affixing my professional seal and signature on this form, I hereby certify that this 
stormwater management facility requires the above described maintenance in order to provide 
the required water quality volume (WQv) and/or to function as it was designed. 
Company:   
Name:   
Address:    
   
E-mail:   
Phone:   
Signature:  

Seal: 
 
 
 
 
 

Date:  
 
Page 2 of 2 

83



File Attachments for Item:

5. SA23-000009 - A request by Gene Moore investment Inc., Owner, and Applicant, to 

subdivide a parcel of property located at 8570 Apple St, Leeds, AL 35094, TPID 

2500223002004.000, Jefferson County, Zoned I-2, Heavy Industrial.

84



85


	Top
	1.	Minutes of June 8, 2023 Meeting
	2023-06-08 - PZC Minutes

	2.	SA23-000007 - A request by Jerry Perry, Applicant, Ariette Luna, Owner, to resurvey certain parcels as Luna Resurvey on Parkway located at 7516 Parkway Dr, 35094, TPID: 25 00 20 1 002 009.000, Jefferson County, Zoned B-2, General Business District Form Based Code Overlay.
	SA23-000007_Notice
	S23-000007 - AERIAL
	Plat Final (1)
	S23-000007 - FLOOD

	3.	SA20-000010 - Street Acceptance - A request by Tower Homes to accept the streets at the Cottages on Weaver.
	Weaver Ave-Street Acceptance Docs Packet-06.28.23

	4.	SA20-000012 - Street Acceptance - A request to release the performance bond related to Grand River South Residential Phase 1, 995 Rex Lake Rd, Leeds ,AL 35094, TPID 2400264000001000, Zoned PCD: Planned Community Development.
	2023-06-30 Request to Release Bond - Grand River Residential Phase 1

	5.	SA23-000009 - A request by Gene Moore investment Inc., Owner and Applicant, to subdivide a parcel of property located at 8570 Apple St, Leeds, AL 35094, TPID 2500223002004.000, Jefferson County, Zoned I-2, Heavy Industrial.
	GENE MOORE INVESTMENT REVISED PLAT

	Bottom

